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PART I
Item 1. Busines:

WWE is an integrated media and entertainment comnpate have been involved in the sports entertairirbasiness for over 30 years, .
have developed WWE into one of the most populandsan global entertainment today. We develop umignd creative content cente
around our talent and present it via televisiodin@nand at our live events. At the heart of ourcass are the athletic and entertainment
and appeal of our Superstars and our consistemiigvative and multfaceted storylines across our brands. Anchorecheyge brands, we ¢
able to leverage our content and talent acrosaaliyt all media outlets. Our live and televised mge consumer products, digital media
feature film outlets provide significant crogesmotion and marketing opportunities that reinfoour brands while effectively reaching
fans.

We continually evaluate additional opportunitiesrionetize new and existing content, including tb&eptial creation of a WWE netwo
In support of this initiative, during 2011 and 2012e Company increased staffing levels and exphode content production capabilities.
believe that executing this strategy could haveptitential to transform our business.

"WWE" refers to World Wrestling Entertainment, Iremd its subsidiaries, unless the context othervdgeires. References to "we," "t
"our" and the "Company" refer to WWE and its sulasids. The initials "WWE" and our stylized and tiig distinctive scratch logo are two
our trademarks. This report also contains other WiviiEemarks and trade names as well as those ef otimpanies. All trademarks and tr
names appearing in this report are the propertiiaf respective holders.

Our operations are centered around the following far business segments:

Live and Televised Entertainment

e Revenues consist principally of ticket sales t@ lavents, sales of merchandise at these live evetasision rights fees, integra

sponsorships fees, and fees for viewing our payvjew and video-on-demand programming.

Consumer Products

e Revenues consist principally of direct sales of W@fBduced home entertainment (DVD/Bhy), magazine publishing and royal

or license fees related to various WWE themed ptsdsuch as video games, toys and apparel.
Digital Media

e Revenues consist principally of advertising salesoor websites, rights fees received for digitaiteat, sale of merchandise on

website through our WWEShop internet storefront salds of various broadband and mobile content.
WWE Studios
e Revenues consist of amounts earned from the disivib of filmed entertainmen

Live and Televised Entertainment
(represents 73% , 70% and 69% of our net revenues 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively)
Live Event:

Our two brandsRAWand SmackDowrallow us to perform in numerous domestic markets @ke advantage of the strong internati
demand for our events. Live events and televisimg@mming are our principal creative content ar@tlpction activities. Our creative te
develops compelling and complex characters and egethem into dynamic storylines that combine plalsiod emotional elements. Storyli
are usually played out in the ring and unfold onwaekly television shows, and culminate in our thgnpay-per-view events.

In 2012, we produced 248e events throughout North America, entertainagproximately 1,500,000 fans at an average tickiet !
$45.39 . We hold many of our live events at majenas across the country. In addition to providiagtent for our
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television and pay-per-view programming, these &/provide us with a real-time assessment of thpeilaoity of our storylines and characters.

In 2012, we produced 66 live events internationatyaching approximately 395,000 fans at an avetiaget price of $74.15 These even
were spread over several international tours tHrougEurope, the Middle East, Asia, Latin America @ustralia.

Live events net revenues were $103.7 million , $204illion and $104.6 million, representing 21%2% and 22% of total net revenue
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Venue Merchandise

Our venue merchandise business consists of thgrdessiurcing, marketing and distribution of numer®¥WE-branded products, such as 1
shirts, caps and other novelty items, all of wHigdture our Superstars, Divas and/or logos. Thesgsiare offered for sale at our live events.

Venue merchandise net revenues were $18.8 millgi8.3 million and $18.4 million, representing 4#dotal net revenues in each of 2(
2011 and 2010.

Pay-Per-View Programming

WWE is the world’s pre-eminent provider of pay-péew programming for over 30 years. In 2012, WWIevised 12 live pay-peview
events which ranked among the highest sellingdivent programs in the industry. WWE's annual crgewel, WrestleMania, has historicall
achieved more than one million buys per event waidd. On April 1, 2012, WWE celebrated the 28th Aensary ofWrestleManian Miami,
Florida before a sold-out crowd with millions waitedp at homeWrestleMania XXVlliachieved approximately 1.3 million buys and gerez
$30.1 million in pay-per-view revenue.

WWE produced 12 domestic pay-per-view programsOih22and 13 programs in 2011. The suggested donressiit price for all pay-per-
view events in 2012 was $44.95, with the exceptibiVrestieManiawhich had a suggested domestic retail price of #4Consistent wit
industry practices, we share the revenues withecaydtems and satellite providers such as Dire@hd, pay service fees to INDEMAND ¢
TVN. Average revenue per buy was $20.60 in 2012%#r8194 in 2011.

Our international pay-periew partners include BSkyB in the United Kingdo8KY Deutschland in Germany, SKY Perfect TV! in Ja,
SKY ltalia in Italy and Main Event in Australia, amg many others.

Pay-per-view net revenues were $83.6 million , $7#8illion and $70.2 million, representing 17946% and 15% of total net revenue
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Television Rights Fees

Relying on our inhouse production capabilities at our technologjcatlvanced, high definition, production facilityeywroduce 6.5 hours
original weekly domestic television programming.isTiprogramming is distributed domestically, intdromally and via WWE.com. O
domestic programs ar®AWon USA Network and replayed on mun2 and Universal Bnd SmackDowron Syfy and replayed on mui
WWE Main Evenbn lon andSaturday Morning Slaron The CW.NXT and WWE Superstarare available on WWE.com and distribute:
more than 100 countries internationally. WWHV programs reach approximately 12 million viesver the United States during the ave
week. USA Network and the Syfy Channel are ownetlBZ Universal.

RAWis a live primetime program broadcasted on the W&Awork which ranks among the most watched regulseheduled programs
primetime cable televisioliRAWis the longest weekly episodic program in primetifivehistory and anchors USA, helping make it cotesitly
the top-rated cable netwolRAWalso airs in replays on mun2 and Universal HD. Beiig in 2012RAWexpanded to a third hour.

The two-hourSmackDownairs on Syfy in primetime on FridaySmackDownis on average Syfy's mostatched program each we
SmackDowris the second longest running weekly episodic @agin primetime TV history, only behindAW. SmackDowrelso airs il
replays on mun2.
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WWE Main Event was added to WWE's programming line-up in Octad@t2. The onéwour original series airs Wednesdays on lon
showcasing live events featuring WANVE Superstarand Divas oRAWandSmackDown

Saturday Morning Slamwas added to WWE's programming line-up in August20rhe halfrour weekly program airs as part of The C
Vortexx, a kids' television block, reaching 114lmit U.S. television households. The program fesdunsing action, WWE Superstar profils
behind-the-scenes footage and an exclusive WWEhmeatery week as well as highlights from WWE's B&T&AR antibullying campaign ar
other community initiatives.

NXTandWWE Superstarairs on WWE.com domestically and are distributededevision in various international markets.

Each year, more than 8,000 hours of W\ Eglevision programming can be seen in more tlncbuntries and 30 languages arount
world. Our broadcast partners include: BSkyB inlth& Ten Sports in India, and J SPORTS in Japamrgmany others.

Television rights fee net revenues were $139.5igmill $131.5 million and $127.0 million, representi29%, 27% and 27% of total r
revenues in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

WWE Classics On Demand

WWE Classics On Demand is a Subscription Video @mBnd (SVOD) service that offers highly-rated aedtbelling classic televisic
shows, pay-peview events, specials and original programming&anonthly subscription fee. Most of this matermldrawn from WWE
100,000 hour video library and includes other legdivrestling brands. WWE owns and controls the eainfrom the vast libraries of st
promotions as WCW, ECW and AWA. WWE Classics On Becthsubscribers have access to approximately 56 lodgontent each month.

WWE Classics On Demand is currently distributechwiiB of the top 20 cable operators in the UniteateSt making WWE Classics
Demand available to approximately 75 percent oéeidndemand enabled subscribers. Major North Americatridutors currently includ
Comcast Communications, Cox Communications, Chamnmunications, Cablevision, Mediacom, and VeriZmmmunications, amo!
others.

WWE Classics On Demand net revenues were $4.lomilti 2012, $4.6 million in 2011 and $4.6 millian2010, representing 1% of tc
net revenues in each period.

Sponsorship Sales

We provide sponsorships in the US domestic markdt@anada to meet the needs of our advertisereughrthese sponsorships, we ¢
advertisers a full range of our promotional vehiclieacluding internet and print advertising, arsignage, on-air announcements and pay-pe
view sponsorship.

Sponsorship net revenues were $1.4 million, $1lfiamiand $5.9 million, in 2012, 2011 and 2010 pestively.
Consumer Products
(represents 18% , 20% and 20% of our net revenues 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively)
Licensing

We have established a worldwide licensing programgiour marks and logos, copyrighted works andagttars on a large variety of re
products, including toys, video games, appareltaaks. Currently, we have relationships with mawant200 licensees worldwide that proy
products for sale at major retailers. To maintdia tlistinctive style and quality of our intelledtymoperty and brand, we retain crea
approval over the design, packaging, advertisirdy@omotional materials associated with these prtsdu

Video games and toys are the largest componerasrdicensing program. We have a comprehensivetiipedr licensing agreement w
Mattel, Inc. as our master toy licensee, coverihglabal territories.Our former video game licensee, THQ, Inc. ("THQI&d for bankruptc
in 2012. In February 2013, the Company reachedyegeanent with THQ to terminate our license
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agreement. Concurrent with the effectiveness ofténmination of our license with THQ, we enteretbim new multiyear agreement wi
Take-Two Interactive Software, Inc. ("TaKevo") to publish future video games. See Note 20h® Consolidated Financial Statem:
included in this report for additional information.

Music is an integral part of the entertainment eigmee surrounding WWE's live events, televisiorognams and pay-pesiews. We
compose and record most of our music, including Superstar entrance themes, in our recording stuidiaddition to our own compos
music, we license music performed by popular artigtusic links the WWE brand to all media platformeluding television, film, radio, vide
games, live events and other emerging digital teldgies.

WWE programming and WWE.com have music woven imfrep-andeoming artists, thus maintaining our commitmentd&yvelopiny
artists and providing a platform to an audience/tich they might not be exposed through traditiomeabrd company marketing.

Licensing net revenues, including music, were $46ilBon , $54.4 million and $51.7 million, repregeng 10%, 11% and 11% of total r
revenues in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Home Videc

In 2012, we released 35 new home video productmasshipped approximately 3.8 million DVD and Bay units, including catalog titl
released in prior years. Gaiam Inc. is our domedstime video distributor. Outside the United Statleisd-party licensees distribute our ha
video productions.

Home video net revenues were $33.0 million , $30ilion and $32.1 million, representing 79%6% and 7% of total net revenues in 2
2011 and 2010, respectively.

Magazine Publishin
The magazine division of WWE publishé8NVE Magazine, WWE Kidsagazine and several special magazines.

The flagship title, WWE Magazineis a global mers lifestyle publication with licensed editions imet UK, Mexico, Greece and Turk
among other countries. Every issue is filled wihttires, photos, exclusive interviews and accedégahs will not see on television. In the
WWE Magazineeaches more than 4.6 million readers every month.

Our WWE Kidsmagazine was launched in April 2008 and publiskedissues in 2012WVWE Kidsalso has licensed editions in the |
Mexico, Greece and Turkey.

Magazine publishing net revenues were $6.0 milli@7.7 million and $11.0 million, representing 1%% and 2% of total net revenue:
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Digital Media
(represents 7% , 6% and 6% of our net revenues in®2, 2011 and 2010, respectively)

WWE.com

WWE utilizes the Internet to promote our brandgate a community experience among our fans, markétistribute our online cont:
and digital products and sell online advertisingr @rimary website, WWE.com, attracted an averdge2o4 million monthly unique visito
worldwide during 2012. These visitors viewed anrage of more than 352 million pages and approxim&té.8 million video streams [
month. WWE wallpapers, ringtones, voicetones adéas are available through our mobile partnerships.

WWE currently has regional websites spanning 23htreas worldwide, allowing fans to experience WWt&Etheir native language witr
concentration on local events and shows. Someeottiuntries in which we have regional websitesuidel China, France, Germany, In
Japan, Poland, Portugal, Spain and Russia. Lok agencies sell advertising on WWE.com in moa@ thine countries.
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WWE currently streams its video content on Hulu.cdfmuTube.com, and other select video portals. Witk range of content includes 1
length episodes @mackDown NXTandWWE Superstars

WWE.com net revenues were $19.7 million , $12.Sionland $14.9 million, representing 49%8% and 3% of total net revenues in 2
2011 and 2010, respectively.

WWEShop
WWEShop is our e-commerce storefront. WWEShop meee approximately 307,000 orders during 2012 agpaced to 330,000 in 2011.

WWEShop net revenues were $14.8 million , $15.6ioniland $14.0 million, representing 38btotal net revenues in 2012, 2011 and 2
respectively.

WWE Studios
(represents 2% , 4% and 4% of our net revenues in®2, 2011 and 2010, respectively)

Established in 2002 and teanded in 2008, WWE Studios creates a diversifiedof filmed entertainment for the WWE fan basg veell
as broader audiences, by means of strategic priodudistribution and acquisition partnerships. WWiBvies frequently cast wekinowr
actors and actresses in lead roles supported by \BUWerstars, such as John Cena and Triple H.

WWE Studios released four feature filngee No Evil The Marine, The Condemnegdand12 Roundsnd two direct-to-DVD filmsBehinc
Enemy LineandThe Marine 2, by utilizing third-party distribution partnersLftensed films”). Beginning in 2010, WWE Studioarsed self-
distributing films, with the releases bégendaryandKnucklehead During 2011, WWE Studios released four films unithés selfdistributior
model; The Chaperone That's What | Am Inside Outand The Reunion In 2012, WWE Studios released the final two filareler this self-
distribution modelBending the Ruleand Barricade. In addition, WWE Studios release@ihe Day, an acquisition from the 2011 Toro
International Film Festival starring Shawn Ashmangl Dominic Monaghan; and re-issud¢d Holds Barredhe 1989 film starring Hulk Hoga

WWE Studios recently co-produced and co-financeal wide-release theatrical feature filnidead Man Dowrwith IM Global starring Coli
Farrell and featuring WWE Superstar Wade Barreth isupporting role; an@he Callwith Troika Pictures starring Halle Berry with W\
Superstar David Otunga in a supporting role. Initaatd WWE Studios recently joined with ﬁmentury Fox to co-produce and finance twi
direct-to-DVD installments of previous franchisd$ie Marine 3: Homefronstarring WWE Superstar The Miz, ad@ Rounds 2: Reload
starring WWE Superstar Randy Orton. These filmguty, as well aslo One Livesvhich was coproduced with Pathe Pictures and stars |
Evans and WWE Superstar Brodus Clay, will be reldakiring 2013.

With its strong WWE fan base and its content cogatind distribution partners, WWE Studios continteebuild its brand recognition a
increase its reach on all platforms. WWE Studiosvies can be seen in theatres, or are availableuichase or rental through major retail
distribution channels including Walmart, NetflixcaBirecTV.

WWE Studios net revenues were $7.9 million , $20ilion and $19.6 million, representing 2%4% and 4% of total net revenues in 2!
2011 and 2010, respectively.

We have substantial capitalized film costs. Theoanting for our film business in accordance witingmally accepted accounting princig
entails significant judgment used to develop edin@f expected future revenues from films. If extpd revenue for one or more of our fi
does not materialize because audience demand dibemeet expectations, our estimated revenues maybadcsufficient to recoup o
investment in the film. If actual revenues are lowean our estimated revenues or if costs are hitfen expected, or if other conditic
indicate our film assets may not be recoverablecateulate the estimated fair value of the filmthé unamortized cost of the film is gre:
than the estimated fair value, we are requirecetond an impairment charge and write down the abpéd costs of the film to the estims
fair value. During the years ended December 31228fd 2011, we recorded aggregate impairment ehafy$1.2 millionand $23.4 millior
respectively related to several
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of our feature films. No impairment charge was rded during 2010. See Note 7 to the Consolidatedrigial Statements included in 1
report for further discussion.

International

Revenues generated outside of North America aalsair business segments were $118.1 milfam2012, $133.4 million for 2011 a
$135.3 million for 2010. Revenues generated frotaritational sources accounted for 24%total revenues generated in 2012, 28% in .
and 28% in 2010. Revenues generated in the Unitaddém, our largest international market, were 83aillion , $33.2 million and $33
million for 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. TBempany had approximately $0.1 milliam property and equipment located outside
United States as of December 31, 2012.

See Note 17 to the Consolidated Financial Statesrinatuded in this report for additional informatiby segment and by geographic area.

Creative Development and Production

Headed by our Chairman and Chief Executive Offivémcent K. McMahon, our creative team develops peling and complex charact
and weaves them into dynamic storylines that compimysical and emotional elements. Storylines awally played out in the ring and unf
on our weekly television shows, and culminate im monthly pay-periew events. We voluntarily designate the suitapibf each of oL
television shows using standard industry ratingd, &l of our programming carries a PG rating.

Our success is due primarily to the continuing papty of our Superstars and Divas. We currentlyéhapproximately 135 Superstars
Divas under exclusive contracts, ranging from raydtar guaranteed contracts with established Superstalevelopmental contracts with
Superstars in training. Our Superstars and Divashaghly trained and motivated independent contractwhose compensation is tied to
revenue that they help generate. We own the righésibstantially all of our characters and exclelsivicense the rights we do not own thro
agreements with our Superstars and Divas. We amitinseek to identify, recruit and develop additibtalent for our business.

Competition

While we believe that we have a loyal fan base,dhtertainment industry is highly competitive ambject to fluctuations in populari
which are not easy to predict. For our live, ted@i, pay-periew and movie audiences, we face competition fppofessional and colle
sports as well as from other forms of live, filmadd televised entertainment and other leisure itieBv We compete with entertainm
companies, professional and college sports leagnes other makers of branded apparel and mercharfidiséhe sale of our brand
merchandise. As we continue to expand into thelhigbmpetitive digital media market we face incedgompetition from websites offeri
paid and free web-based and wireless content. Mampanies with whom we compete have greater fimhnesources than we do.

Trademarks and Copyrights

Intellectual property is material to all aspectsoof operations, and we expend substantial costeffiodt in an attempt to maintain &
protect our intellectual property and to maintaimpliance vis-a-vis other partieisitellectual property. We have a large portfoliorefistere
and unregistered trademarks and service marks wiglddand maintain a large catalog of copyrightedkspincluding copyrights in o
television programming, music, photographs, bookagazines and apparel art. A principal focus of efforts is to protect the intellect
property relating to our originally created chaeastportrayed by our performers, which encompassages, likenesses, names and ¢
identifying indicia of these characters. We alsoncavlarge number of internet website domain nanmesaperate a network of develog
content-based sites, which facilitate and contahliatthe exploitation of our intellectual propewgridwide.

We vigorously seek to enforce our intellectual gy rights by, among other things, searching tiernet to ascertain unauthorized us
our intellectual property, seizing goods that featunauthorized use of our intellectual propertgt aeeking restraining orders and/or dam
in court against individuals or entities infringingr intellectual property rights. Our failure tortail piracy, infringement or other unauthori
use of our intellectual property rights effectivedy our infringement of other@tellectual property rights, could adversely affear operatin
results.
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Financial Information about Segments

See Note 17 to Notes to Consolidated Financiak8tants, which is included elsewhere in this ForaK1€r financial information abo
each of our segments.

Employees

As of February 2013, we had approximately 721 ege#s. This headcount excludes our Superstars, vehim@ependent contractors. (
in-house production staff is supplemented with comtpersonnel for our television production. We badig¢hat our relationships with ¢
employees are good. None of our employees aresepted by a union.

Regulation

Live Events

In various states in the United States and son@doijurisdictions, athletic commissions and otigplicable regulatory agencies requir
to obtain licenses for promoters, medical clearararel/or other permits or licenses for performady@ permits for events in order for ut
promote and conduct our live events. If we fait@mply with the regulations of a particular juristithn, we may be prohibited from promot
and conducting our live events in that jurisdictidime inability to present our live events overexttended period of time or in a numbe
jurisdictions could lead to a decline in the vasaevenue streams generated from our live evertichweould adversely affect our opera
results.

Television Programming

The production of television programming by indegemt producers is not directly regulated by thesfatlor state governments, but
marketplace for television programming in the Udif&tates and internationally is substantially afddy government regulations applici
to, as well as social and political influences wmtevision stations, television networks and cald satellite television systems and chan
We voluntarily designate the suitability of eachoaf television shows using standard industry ¢egjrand all of our programming carries a
rating. Changes in governmental policy and privsgetor perceptions could further restrict our paogicontent and adversely affect our le
of viewership and operating results.

Available Information

Copies of our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, @erdy Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports om#8#K, and any amendments to th
reports, are available free of charge on our welaihttp://corporate.wwe.com as soon as reasopadtyicable after such reports are filed 1
or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Coniomis§'SEC”). Our reports are also available free abfarge on the SE€’website
http://www.sec.gov. The public may read and copy ematerials filed by the Company with the SEC & 8EC5 Public Reference Room
100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549. The puhky obtain information on the operation of the RuBleference Room by calling the S
at 1-800-SEC-0330. None of the information on ahpur websites is part of this Annual Report onrrdr0K. Our Corporate Governar
Guidelines, Code of Business Conduct and chartemup Audit, Compensation and our Governance andiNating Committees are a
available on our website. A copy of any of theseuheents will be mailed to any stockholder withobiige upon request to us at 1241
Main Street, Stamford, CT 06902, Attn: Investor&ieins Department.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

There are inherent risks and uncertainties assatiaith our business that could adversely affectaperating performance and finan
condition. Set forth below are descriptions of #hdsks and uncertainties that we currently believee material, but the risks and uncertai
described below are not the only risks and uncgits that could affect our business. See the d#on under Cautionary Statement 1
Purposes of the ‘Safe Harbor’ Provisions of thev&a Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995” itein 7, Managemerst’ Discussion ar
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggtems, in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The Company has begun and anticipates that it wiltontinue to increase content production for distritution on various platforms,
including the potential creation of a WWE network and these efforts could have a material adverse etfeon our operating results.

The Company has invested significant capital aretatjng expenses to develop sufficient infrastmecand programming, and anticipz
that it will continue to incur such expenses in fiieire. The failure to enter into distribution agments for this content and to realize reve
sufficient to cover such expenses could have anmatelverse effect on our operating results.

Our failure to maintain or renew key agreements cold adversely affect our ability to distribute televsion and pay-perview
programming which could adversely affect our operang results.

Our television programming is distributed by braastcand cable networks, and our pay-per-view progriag is distributed by pay-per-
view providers. Because our revenues are genemitedfly and indirectly, from this distribution ofir programming, any failure to maintair
renew arrangements with distributors, the failuréistributors to continue to provide services toan the failure to enter into new distribut
opportunities could adversely affect our operatiegults. We regularly engage in negotiations ne¢atd substantial agreements covering
distribution of our television programming by cars located in the United States and abroad. Mreepast several years we have expande
relationship with NBC Universal and they currerdigtribute a majority of our domestic televisiomgramming.

Our failure to continue to develop creative and erdrtaining programs and events would likely lead ta decline in the popularity o
our brand of entertainment and could adversely affet our operating results.

The creation, marketing and distribution of ourliand televised entertainment, including our payvwew events, as well as additio
derivative programming, is at the core of our bass The production of compelling live and teledis®ntent is critical to our ability
generate revenues across our media platforms apdugtr outlets. Our failure to continue to creatgular live events and televis
programming would likely lead to a decline in oetetision ratings and attendance at our live evemtich would adversely affect ¢
operating results.

Our failure to retain or continue to recruit key performers could lead to a decline in the appeal ofwr storylines and the popularity
of our brand of entertainment, which could adversg} affect our operating results.

Our success depends, in large part, upon ouryabilitecruit, train and retain athletic performerso have the physical presence, ac
ability and charisma to portray characters in owg events and televised programming. We cannotagniiee that we will be able to continu
identify, train and retain these performers in filmeire. Additionally, we cannot guarantee that wi# lae able to retain our current perform
during the terms of their contracts or when tha&intcacts expire. Our failure to attract and retiedty performers, an increase in the ¢
required to attract and retain such performers serious or untimely injury to, or the death afuoexpected or premature loss or retiret
for any reason of, any of our key performers colelald to a decline in the appeal of our storylined #e popularity of our brand
entertainment, which could adversely affect ourrapieg results.
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The unexpected loss of the services of Vincent K. dahon could adversely affect our ability to createpopular characters anc
creative storylines or could otherwise adversely &fct our operating results.

In addition to serving as Chairman of our BoardDifectors and Chief Executive Officer, Mr. McMahteads the creative team t
develops the storylines and the characters fort@lawvised programming and live events. Mr. McMahfbam time to time, has also been
important member of our cast of performers. The los Mr. McMahon due to unexpected retirement, lalgg, death or other unexpect
termination for any reason could have a materiakesk effect on our ability to create popular cbimas and creative storylines or cc
otherwise adversely affect our operating results.

A decline in general economic conditions or disrupon of financial markets may, among other things, educe the discretionar
income of consumers or erode advertising markets, vich could adversely affect our business.

Our operations are affected by general economiditions, which affect consumerdisposable income. The demand for entertainmer
leisure activities tends to be highly sensitivéhie level of consumerslisposable income. Declines in general economiditions could reduc
the level of discretionary income that our fans aptential fans have to spend on our live and teéglyentertainment and consumer prod
which could adversely affect our revenues. Volgtiind disruption of financial markets could linoitir clients’, licensees’ and distributors’
ability to obtain adequate financing to maintaireigtions and result in a decrease in sales volinetecbuld have a negative impact on
business, financial condition and results of openat Our television partners derive revenues ftbm sale of advertising. We also
advertising directly on our website and in our nmges and, depending upon the distribution methmsésl to monetize additional content,
may have additional advertising to sell. Softnesthe advertising markets, due to a weak economiad@ment or otherwise, could advers
affect our revenues or the financial viability efraistributors.

Our accounts receivable represent a significant paéion of our current assets and relate principally © a limited number of
distributors and licensees, increasing our exposure® bad debts and could potentially have a materiahdverse affect on our results «
operations.

A substantial portion of our accounts receivabkefeom distributors of our pay-peiew, television, home video and magazine prodant
licensees who produce consumer products contaoungntellectual trademarks. The concentration wf accounts receivable across a lim
number of distributors subjects us to individuatdit risk with respect to such parties. Additiopalhdverse changes in general econ:
conditions and/or contraction in global credit neigkcould precipitate liquidity problems among debtors, including our key distributs
and/or licensees. This could increase our expotuiesses from bad debts and have a material agheaffect on our business, finan
condition and results of operations.

On December 19, 2012, our former video game liced$4Q declared bankruptcy. As a result, the Compasgrved $1.7 million as bad d
for amounts that were due the Company from THQ etdbnber 31, 2012. The amounts reserved primaldyec to sponsorship agreem
and various services WWE provided to THQ in suppbthe release dVWE '13.

A s aresult of THQ's bankruptcy, the Company will be able to collect and recognize a portion oicgrated royalties due in the first qua
of approximately $4.0 million to $5.0 million, amlbes not believe that this loss will have a matexitverse effect on the Company's busir
financial condition or results of operations.

A decline in the popularity of our brand of sportsentertainment, including as a result of changes ithe social and political climate
could adversely affect our business.

Our operations are affected by consumer tastegatgttainment trends, which are unpredictable aibgest to change and may be affe
by changes in the social and political climate. @rogramming is created to evoke a passionate msspwom our fans. Changes in our fans
tastes or a material change in the perceptionsiobosiness partners, including our distributord Beensees, whether as a result of the s
and political climate or otherwise, could adversaffgct our operating results.
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Changes in the regulatory atmosphere and related jprate sector initiatives could adversely affect oubusiness.

While the production of television programming Ioglépendent producers is not directly regulatedneyféderal or state government
the United States, the marketplace for televisimgmmming in the United States is affected sigaifitly by government regulations applic:
to, as well as social and political influences tabevision stations, television networks and calid satellite television systems and chan
We voluntarily designate the suitability of eachoof television shows using standard industry getjirand all of our programming currently
a PG rating. Domestic and foreign governmental@mdtesector initiatives relating to the content of megliagramming are announced fr
time to time. Any failure by us to meet these goweental policies and privatector expectations could restrict our program exnan:
adversely affect our levels of viewership and ofiegaresults.

The markets in which we operate are highly competite, rapidly changing and increasingly fragmentedand we may not be able t
compete effectively, especially against competitonsith greater financial resources or marketplace pesence, which could adverse
affect our operating results.

For our live, television and pay-perew audiences, we face competition from professi@md college sports, as well as from other fi
of live and televised entertainment and other leisactivities in a rapidly changing and increasingagmented marketplace. The manne
which audio/video content is distributed and vieviedonstantly changing. While we attempt to distté our content across all platforms,
failure to continue to do so effectively (includjrfgr example only, our emphasizing a distributpbatform that in time lessens in importanc
becomes obsolete or our loss of, or other inakititprocure, carriage on an important platform)ldadversely affect our operating results.
the sale of our consumer products, we compete @ntiertainment companies, professional and collpgets leagues and other maker
branded apparel and merchandise. Many of the coeparith whom we compete have greater financiaueses than we do.

Our failure to compete effectively could resultansignificant loss of viewers, venues, distributimannels or performers and fe
entertainment and advertising dollars spent orfaum of sports entertainment, any of which coul@exdely affect our operating results.

We face uncertainties associated with internationaimarkets, which could adversely affect our operatig results and impair out
business strategy.

Cultural norms vary in the markets in which we rgpe and our products' conformance to the locahsarould affect our sales, viewers
and success in the markets. Our production of éivents overseas subjects us to the risks involmefdreign travel and local regulatio
including regulations requiring us to obtain vidas our performers. In addition, these live eveatsl the licensing of our television ¢
consumer products in international markets expas¢éousome degree of currency risk. Internationarafions may be subject to politi
instability inherent in varying degrees in thoserkess. These risks could adversely affect our dpegaesults and impair our ability to pur:
our business strategy as it relates to internatioakets.

We may be prohibited from promoting and conductingour live events if we do not comply with applicableegulations, which coulc
lead to a decline in the various revenue streams igerated from our live events, which could adverselaffect our operating results.

In the United States and some foreign jurisolis, athletic commissions and other applicablgulaory agencies require us to ob
licenses for promoters, medical clearances andhar@ermits or licenses for performers and/or psrfior events in order for us to prom
and conduct our live events. In the event that aietd comply with the regulations of a particujarisdiction, we may be prohibited frc
promoting and conducting our live events in thatsgiction. The inability to present our live everdver an extended period of time or
number of jurisdictions could lead to a declinghin various revenue streams generated from ouelreats, which could adversely affect
operating results.

Because we depend upon our intellectual property ghts, our inability to protect those rights, or our infringement of others’
intellectual property rights, could adversely affe¢ our business.

Our inability to protect our large portfolio of ttamarks, service marks, copyrighted material aratagters, trade names and o
intellectual property rights from piracy, countétifeg or other unauthorized use could negativefg@four business.



12




Table of Contents

Intellectual property is material to all aspectsoaf operations, and we expend substantial coseffod in an attempt to maintain and pro
our intellectual property and to maintain compliands-a-vis other partiesitellectual property. We have a large portfolioregistered ar
unregistered trademarks and service marks worldaremaintain a large catalog of copyrighted worksluding copyrights to our televisi
programming, music, photographs, books, magazindsapparel art. A principal focus of our effortstds protect the intellectual prope
relating to our originally created characters moyréd by our performers, which encompasses imatjeselsses, names and other identif
indicia of these characters. We also own a largabmar of Internet website domain names and operagtwaork of developed, contehase:
sites, which facilitate and contribute to the exalion of our intellectual property worldwide.

Our failure to curtail piracy, infringement or othenauthorized use of our intellectual propertyhtigeffectively, or our infringement
others’ intellectual property rights, could advédyssfect our operating results.

We could incur substantial liabilities if litigation is resolved unfavorably.

In the ordinary course of business we become subjecarious complaints and litigation matters. Theécome of litigation is inheren
difficult to assess and quantify, and the defergsgrst such claims or actions can be costly. Angeegk judgment significantly in excess of
insurance coverage could adversely affect our firiicondition or results of operations.

We could incur substantial liability in the event d accidents or injuries occurring during our physically demanding events.

We hold numerous live events each year. This sdbezkposes our performers and our employees whineoé/ed in the production
those events to the risk of travel and performametated accidents, the consequences of which maypendully covered by insurance. 1
physical nature of our events exposes our perfanmethe risk of serious injury or death. Althoumr performers, as independent contrac
are responsible for maintaining their own healtisaldility and life insurance, we setfsure medical costs for our performers for injariba
they incur while performing. We also séfisure a substantial portion of any other liabitiyat we could incur relating to such injuries. hilay
to us resulting from any death or serious injurgtained by one of our performers while performitogthe extent not covered by our insura
could adversely affect our business, financial éodand operating results.

Our live events entail other risks inherent in pubic live events, which could lead to disruptions tour business as well as liability t
other parties, any of which could adversely affeabur financial condition or results of operations.

We hold numerous live events each year, both docaigtand internationally. Certain risks are ingxetrin large events of this type as\
as the travel to and from them. Although we belieretake appropriate safety and financial precastio connection with our events, poss
difficulties could occur including air and land ¥ed interruption or accidents, the spread of ilfésjuries resulting from building problems
other equipment malfunction, violence, local lakbikes and other "force majeure" type events. &hssues could result in canceled ev
and other disruptions to our business as welladslity to other parties, any of which could adversely affaat financial condition or results
operations.

We continue to face certain risks relating to our éature film business, which could result in highemproduction costs and assi
impairment charges, which could adversely affect aufinancial condition or our results of operations.

We have substantial capitalized film costs. Theoanting for our film business in accordance witmepally accepted accounti
principles entails significant judgment used toalep estimates of expected future revenues framsfilf expected revenue for one or mor
our films does not materialize because audienceaddrdoes not meet expectations, our estimated wegamay not be sufficient to recoup
investment in the film. If actual revenues are lowean our estimated revenues or if costs are higfen expected, we may be require
record an impairment charge and write down thetaklped costs of the film. No assurance can bergiat we will not record additior
impairment charges in future periods. In additiapitalized film costs are reflected net of cerainduction tax incentives granted by vari
governmental authorities. Our ability to realizegh credits may be limited by changes in the latiisi governing the incentives and/or
economic environment. The inability to realize #hesedits would have the effect of increasing awgrall production costs.
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We could face a variety of risks if we expand intmew and complementary business and make certain iagtments.

We have entered into new or complementary busisassthe past and may do so again in the futuayding the potential creation o
WWE Network. In addition, we regularly review acgjtipns and investments and in 2012 made an in\¥gtin an early stage business in
amount of $5.0 million. Risks of expansion may utd, among other risks: potential diversion of ngemaent$ attention and other resourt
including available cash, from our existing busgess unanticipated liabilities or contingenciestuaed earnings due to increased amortiz:
impairment charges and other costs; competitiomfather companies with more experience in suchnlegses; and possible additic
regulatory requirements and compliance costs wtiehd affect our business, financial condition aperating results.

We face various risks relating to our computer sygms and online operations, which could have a nedat impact on our financial
condition or our results of operations.

The Company faces the risk of a security breadtissuption, whether through external cyber intrasiw from persons with acces:
systems inside our organization. Although the Camgpaakes significant efforts to maintain the seyuoif its computer systems, and it
implemented various measures to manage the risksafcurity breach or disruption, there can be isorasce that these security efforts
measures will be effective or that attempted sécbrieaches or disruptions would not be successfdmaging or that the Company woulc
promptly aware of them. The Company and certaiitsathird party service providers receive persanrmation through web services, an
many instances this information is subject to tleen@any's privacy policies. Personal informatiocereed by our service providers inclu
credit card information in certain instances, mostably WWEShop, the Company's internet retail apens. The Company expel
significant effort to ensure compliance with itsvacy policy and to ensure that our service prorsdsafeguard credit card informat
including contractually requiring those providecsremain compliant with applicable PCI Data Segu8tandards. However, a signific
security breach or other disruption involving thentpany's computer systems could: disrupt the préyactioning of these systems
therefore the Company's operations; result in theuthorized access to, and destruction, loss,, t$appropriation or release of propriet
confidential, sensitive or otherwise valuable imfi@ation; require significant management attentiod esources to remedy the damages
could result; subject the Company to litigation;d@mage its reputation, any or all of which coultlén a negative impact on its finan
condition or results of operations.

Through his beneficial ownership of a substantial rajority of our Class B common stock, Mr. McMahon ca exercise control ove
our affairs, and his interests may conflict with tke holders of our Class A common stock.

We have Class A common stock and Class B commark.siche holders of Class A common stock generadlyehrights identical -
holders of Class B common stock, except that heldérClass A common stock are entitled to one y&e share, and holders of Clas
common stock are entitled to ten votes per shaokddtls of both classes of common stock generallywste together as a single class ot
matters presented to stockholders for their vot@pproval, except as otherwise required by appkcBlelaware law.

A substantial majority of the issued and outstagdihares of Class B common stock is owned benlyidig Vincent K. McMahon. Mi
McMahon controls approximately 83% of the votingyeo of the issued and outstanding shares of oumoamstock. Through his benefic
ownership of a substantial majority of our Classd@nmon stock, Mr. McMahon effectively can exerctsmtrol over our affairs, and |
interest could conflict with the holders of our €88A common stock. In addition, the voting poweMsf McMahon through his ownership
our Class B common stock could discourage othemn finitiating potential mergers, takeovers or otbleange of control transactions. A
result, the market price of our Class A commonistmuld decline.

To the extent the Companys dividend distributions represent a return of capial for tax purposes, shareholders will recognizerz
increased capital gain upon a subsequent sale ofgtlCompany’s Common Stock.

The Companys aggregate dividend distributions paid in 2012eniarexcess of its current and accumulated earrangsprofits calculate
under applicable Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”) jgmns. Under the IRC, distributions in excess athbthe Company current earnings a
profits and the Company’s accumulated earningspmofits constitute a return of capital and reduoe $tockholdes adjusted tax basis in
Common Stock. If a stockholdsradjusted basis in its Common Stock is reduceeéito, these excess distributions thereafter comstit capit:
gain to the stockholder.
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Our dividend is significant and is affected by a nmber of factors.

Our Board of Directors regularly evaluates the Canys Common Stock dividend policy and determines thiend rate each quart
The level of dividends will continue to be influettby many factors, including, among other thirmgs, liquidity and historical and project
cash flow, our strategic plan (including alternativses of capital), our financial results and ctiowlj contractual and legal restrictions on
payment of dividends (including under our revolvirgdit facility), general economic and competitognditions and such other factors as
Board of Directors may consider relevant from tirméime. We cannot assure our stockholders thatieinds will be paid in the future, or tt
if paid, dividends will be at the same amount ottvthe same frequency as in the past. Any redudtiarur dividend payments could hav
negative effect on our stock price.

A substantial number of shares are eligible for sal by Mr. McMahon and members of his family or trust established for thei
benefit, and the sale of those shares could loweunrstock price.

All of the issued and outstanding shares of Clagp®Bmon stock are held by Vincent McMahon and othembers of the McMah:
family and trusts set up for these family memb&aes of substantial amounts of these sharesgeopdlteption that such sales could o«
may lower the prevailing market price of our Classommon stock. If any sales or transfers of CBig®mmon stock were to occur to pers
outside of the McMahon family, the shares wouldbadtically convert into Class A common stock.

Our Class A common stock has a relatively small pute "float."

Historically, as a result of our relatively smalliic float, our Class A common stock has been lieggd than the common stock
companies with broader public ownership, and thditrg prices for our Class A common stock have bmere volatile than generally may
the case for more widelyeld common stock. Among other things, trading oélatively small volume of our Class A common &totay hav
a greater impact on the trading price of our Clasemmon stock than would be the case if our puldiat were larger.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen
None.
Item 2. Properties
We have executive offices, television and musiorming studios, pogtroduction operations and warehouses at locationar inea
Stamford, Connecticut. We also have sales offineleéw York, Los Angeles, Atlanta and Chicago andehimternational offices in Londc

Tokyo, Shanghai, Istanbul and Mumbai. We own twdhaf buildings in which our executive and admigittte offices, our television a
music recording studios and our production openatare located. We lease space for our sales &ffil#®VE Studios office and other faciliti¢

In order to allow for future growth, starting in 2l we began expanding our content productionifi@sl We leased additional spaci
Norwalk and Stamford, Connecticut and commencedtcoction on owned facilities to accommodate theagsion.
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Our principal properties consist of the following:

Square Expiration Date of
Facility Location Feet  Owned/Leasec Lease

Warehouse space Norwalk, CT 66,00( Leased November 2016

Production facility Stamford, CT 90,00( Owned —

WWE Studios office Los Angeles, CA 19,00( Leased April 2020

Warehouse space Stamford, CT 5,60( Leased May, 2015

All of the facilities listed above are utilized aqur Live and Televised Entertainment, Consumer &etsdand Digital Media segments, v
the exception of the WWE Studios office in Los Alege which focuses on our WWE Studios segment.

Item 3. Legal Proceeding

We are involved in several suits and claims thatamsider to be in the ordinary course of our bessn By its nature, the outcome of litiga
is not known but the Company does not currentlyeekjis pending litigation to have a material adeezffect on our financial condition, res
of operations or liquidity. We may from time to #nbecome a party to other legal proceedings.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosure

Not Applicable
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrar's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters argslier Purchases of Equity Securities
Our Class A common stock trades on the New YorklSExchange, under the symbol "WWE".

The following table sets forth the high ané thw sale prices per share of our Class A comniocksas reported by the New York St
Exchange and the dividends paid per share of @laswd Class B common stock for the periods inditate

Fiscal Year 2012

Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 Full Year
Class A common stock price per share:
High $ 9.9t % 9.0¢ % 8.9¢ $ 8.8¢ % 9.9t
Low $ 8.67 $ 744 % 754 % 75C $ 7.44
Class A dividends paid per share $ 0.1z % 0.1z $ 0.1z $ 0.1z % 0.4¢
Class B dividends paid per share $ 0.1z $ 01z $ 01z $ 01z $ 0.4¢
Fiscal Year 2011
Quarter Ended
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 Full Year
Class A common stock price per share:
High $ 14.3¢ § 12.9: % 103: % 10.8C % 14.3¢
Low $ 11.5C $ 88t $ 8.67 $ 8.7C $ 8.67
Class A dividends paid per share $ 0.3¢ % 01z $ 01z $ 01z $ 0.7z
Class B dividends paid per share $ 02¢ $ 01z $ 01z $ 01z $ 0.6C

There were 8,980 holders of record of ClassoAaimon stock and five holders of record of ClassoBimon stock on February 27, 2C
Vincent K. McMahon, Chairman of the Board of Direrst and Chief Executive Officer, controls approxiety 83% of the voting power of t
issued and outstanding shares of our common stdukugh the beneficial ownership of a substantiajamity of our Class B common sto
Mr. McMahon can effectively exercise control over affairs.

Our Class B common stock is fully convertible if@tass A common stock, on a one for one basis, atiare at the option of the holder. 1
two classes are entitled to equal per share didislamd distributions and vote together as a clétkseach share of Class B entitled to ten v
and each share of Class A entitled to one votegpixwhen separate class voting is required by eqapke law. If, at any time, any share:
Class B common stock are beneficially owned by pergon other than Vincent McMahon, Linda McMahany descendant of either of the
any entity which is wholly owned and is controllbg any combination of such persons or any trustthel beneficiaries of which are ¢
combination of such persons, each of those shatkesutomatically convert into shares of Class Argoon stock.

From February 2008 until April 2011, the Board afdators authorized quarterly cash dividends oB&Qer share on all Class A comr
shares. The quarterly dividend on all Class A alab€B shares held by members of the McMahon faamilty their respective trusts remai
at $0.24 per share for a period of three yeargaaewaiver received from the McMahon family. Thiaiver expired after the declaration of
March 2011 dividend. Beginning with the second tgraof 2011 dividend payment, the Company has paatterly dividends of $0.12 g
share on all Class A and Class B shares.
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Our Board of Directors regularly evaluates the Canys Common Stock dividend policy and determines tl&lend rate each quart
The level of dividends will continue to be influettby many factors, including, among other thirmgs, liquidity and historical and project
cash flow, our strategic plan (including alternativses of capital), our financial results and comdi contractual and legal restrictions on
payment of dividends (including under our revolvirgdit facility), general economic and competitognditions and such other factors as
Board of Directors may consider relevant from timeéime. We cannot assure our stockholders thatieinds will be paid in the future, or tt
if paid, dividends will be at the same amount ottvthe same frequency as in the past. Any redudtiayur dividend payments could hav
negative effect on our stock price.

In 2011, the Company entered into a $200 millioroheng credit facility. The revolving credit fady restricts our ability to pay dividends i
default or event of default has occurred and idinaimg thereunder, if our consolidated leverag@réas calculated under the revolving cr
facility) exceeds 2.5:1.0 or if our consolidaterlefi charge coverage ratio (as calculated underethaving credit facility) does not exce
1.25:1.0. As of December 31, 2012, we are in coamgke with the provisions of the revolving creditifidy and are not restricted from pay
dividends to our stockholders.

Cumulative Total Return Chart

Set forth below is a line graph comparing, for gegiod commencing December 31, 2007 and ended Dmsre®i, 2012, the cumulative tc
return on our Class A common stock compared tocthmulative total return of the Russell 2000 Index! £&P Movies and Entertainm
Index, a published industry index. The graph assuthe investment of $100 at the close of tradingfadecember 31, 2007 in our Clas
common stock, the Russell 2000 Index and the S&Ridéoand Entertainment Index and the reinvestmialt dividends.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Dat

The following selected consolidated financial dadés been derived from our consolidated financitestents. You should read the sele
financial data in conjunction with our consolidatitancial statements and related notes and thernrdtion set forth under “Management’
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ebsults of Operations” contained elsewhere inréyiort.

Financial Highlights: (in millions)

For the year ended December 31,
2012 (1) 2011 (2) 2010 2009 (3) 2008

Net revenues $ 484.C $ 483¢ $ 477 $ 475z $ 526.
Operating income $ 43z $ 37C $ 82: $ 771 $ 70:8
Net income $ 3142 $ 24¢ $ 53t $ 50 $ 454
Earnings per share, basic $ 04z $ 032 $ 072 $ 068 $ 0.62
Earnings per share, diluted $ 04z $ 03: $ 071 $ 068 $ 0.62
Dividends paid per Class A share $ 04 $ 07z $ 14 $ 14 & 1.4z
Dividends paid per Class B share $ 04 $ 06C $ 09 $ 09 $ 0.9¢
As of December 31,
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments $ 152« $ 155.¢& $ 166.¢ $ 208z $ 177.C
Total assets $ 381l¢c $ 378.¢ $ 41557 $ 4406 $ 429«
Total debt $ — 3 1€ $ 28 $ 3¢ $ 4.€
Total stockholders’ equity $ 2947 $ 2951 $ 316.7 $ 337.C $ 360.(

(1) Operating income includes $8.2 million of sostcurred associated with our emerging contentdistdbution efforts, including a potential networ
offset by the impact of a $4.4 million tax beneétating to previously unrecognized tax benefits.

(2) Operating income includes impairment charges onfeature films of $23.4 million (See Note 7 to fensolidated Financial Statements) and
million associated with our emerging content anstribution efforts, including a potential netwoiResults for 2011 do not include amounts
management incentive compensation since the Congidmpot meet performance targets.

(3) Operating income includes a charge of $7.4 millielating to an allowance recorded against a reb&wdue from a former distribution partr
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Item 7. Managemer's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditionna Results of Operations

You should read the following discussion in congimt with the audited consolidated financial states and related notes inclu
elsewhere in this report.

Background

The following analysis outlines all material actie#s contained within each of our reportable segmen

Live and Televised Entertainment

e Revenues consist principally of ticket sales t@ lavents, sales of merchandise at these live evetasision rights fees, integra
sponsorships fees, and fees for viewing our payvjew and video-on-demand programming.

Consumer Products

e Revenues consist principally of the direct salesMWE produced home entertainment (DVD/Bhag), magazine publishing, &

royalties or license fees related to various WWéthd products such as video games, toys and apparel

Digital Media

e Revenues consist principally of advertising saleor websites, rights fees received for digitaiteat, sale of merchandise on

website through our WWEShop internet storefront salds of various broadband and mobile content.

WWE Studios

e Revenues consist of amounts earned from the disiib of filmed entertainmer
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Results of Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2012 compared to Year Erdecember 31, 2011
(dollars in millions)

Summary

Live and Televised Entertainment $ 353¢ $ 340.( 4%
Digital Media 34.t 28.1 23 %
Total 484.( 483.¢ — %

Profit Contribution

Consumer Products 53.¢ 56.1 (4%
WWE Studios (3.6) (27.€) 87%

Profit contribution margin 41% 35%

Selling, general and administrative expenses 136.¢ 116.7 17%

Operating income 43.2 37.C 17%

Investment income, net 2.2 2.1 5%

Other expense, net (2.0 (1.6 (38)%
Provision for income taxes 11.:c 12.1 (7%

The comparability of our results for 2012 was pesly impacted by the recognition of approximat&4.4 millionin previously unrecogniz:
tax benefits. We also incurred $8.2 millionoperating expenses associated with our emempngent and distribution efforts and record:
$1.2 million impairment charge relating to our tieature filmsBending the RulesndBarricadein 2012 compared to $4.0 million in operai
expenses associated with our emerging content itribdtion effort and $23.4 millioin impairment charges for nine feature films in 2
Additionally, 2012 results reflect the return to mamormalized levels of management incentive corsgion, which resulted in increa:

expense of $9.8 million before taxes in 2012 cormpdo 2011

Our Live and Televised Entertainment segmewemues increased primarily due to the increaseshtes in our pay-pefiew and televisio
rights business of 7% and 6% , respectively. OunsDmer Products segment experienced adgéétine in revenues reflecting declines in
licensing business and magazine publishing busi@asDigital Media segment experienced a ZB#ease in revenues, driven by increme
fees from new agreements entered into with YouTalé Hulu. Our WWE Studios segment reflected a $13illon decrease in reven

primarily due to the timing and number of film rases.
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The following chart provides performance resultd key drivers for our Live and Televised Entertagmhsegment:

Live events $ 1037 $  104.7 (D)%

&

International 31.€ 39.¢ 2))%

Number of North American events 24¢ 241 3%

©

Average North American ticket price (dollars) 453¢ % 42.11 8%

Average international attendance 6,00( 6,70( (10)%

&

Venue merchandise 186 % 18.2 3%

&

83.¢

&

Pay-per-view 78.5 7%

Number of buys of pay-per-views 4,023,001 3,842,101 5%

Domestic retail pricé&/restleMania(dollars) $ 549 $ 549t —%

Television rights fees $ 139t $ 131t 6%

&

50.¢

&

International 51.2

Total $ 3538 $ 340U« 4.1%

Average weekly household ratings RAW 3.3 3.€

o
o

N/A

Average weekly household ratings Ktain Event

©+
N
©
[N
©+
N
oo
~I

Live events 2%

N
o

Pay per view 46.C 13%

Other (5.7 (2.7) 89 %

Profit contribution margin 38% 38%
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Live events revenues decreased $1.0 miliior2012 as compared to 2011 primarily due to sefeaver events held during 2012. (
international live events business decreased $8lidm, primarily driven by fourteen fewer events heldidg 2012. Average attendance at
international events declined 10% to 6,000 attemaa®l international ticket prices increased byiB%012 as compared to 2011. Our N
American live events business increased by $7.komidluring 2012, primarily due to the strong penfance of our annu&l/restleManiseven
held during 2012 which generated $3.3 million miorécket sales than the prior year event. Averégeet prices for our North America eve
increased by 8% to $45.39We also experienced an increase in event spdriparsvenues of $1.0 million. Cost of revenue foe levent
decreased by $1.5 millionprimarily due to lower venue related expensesciwiwas partially offset by additional sponsorshipenses. Tt
live events profit contribution margin increase®8% from 27% in 2011.

Venue merchandise revenues increased $0.bmili 2012 as compared to 2011. This increaseiisapily due to a 3%ncrease in Norl
America events held in 2012 as compared to 201kt Gbrevenue for venue merchandise increased &dl®n from 2011, driven b
increased costs of materials due to product mixa Assult, venue merchandise profit contributiomgimadecreased to 41% from 44% in 2011.

Pay-per-view revenues increased $5.3 millremf2011, primarily due to a 5% increase in totaydand a 3%ncrease in average revel
per buy. The growth in buys for 2012 events wasl@manantly due to an increase in buys for bdrestleManiaand SummerSlanevents
which was patrtially offset by the elimination ofemvent in the current yearhe increase in the average revenue per buy ibwtble t
incremental fees charged for viewing our eventsigi definition, which was implemented in 2008. Cafsrevenues for pay-petiew remaine
flat from 2011, driven primarily by increases itet& expenses which was offset by lower productiosts partially driven by the receipt
television production tax credits associated witbriar year event. The pay-per-view profit conttibn margin increased to 55% from 526
2011.

Television rights fees increased $8.0 millian2012 compared to 2011. Domestically, televisiwhts fees increased by $8.6 millign
primarily due to incremental license fees from freduction and distribution of new programs andt@iual increases from our exist
programs. An additional hour of oRAWprogram was licensed to USA Network and debutetlly 2012. Moreover, during 2012, we be
production of two new original series, th/VE Main EvenandSaturday Morning Slamwhich air on ION Television Network and The (
Network, respectively. This was partially offset tine absence of rights fees from WWE Superstansrogram, which moved to WWE.com
April 2011. Internationally, our television rightses decreased by $0.6 million , primarily duehte éxpiration and norenewal of our Sou
Korea distribution agreement. Television rightstaafsrevenues increased by $6.6 milliom2012 due to higher direct costs for staff red
expenses, including the reset of management in@eotmpensation as compared to 2011. As a resldtjision rights fee profit contributi
margin decreased to 41% from 43% in 2011.
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Consumer Products

The following chart provides performance resultd key drivers for our Consumer Products segmerilaf@an millions):

increase

RevenuesConsumer Products 2012 2011 (decrease)
Licensing $ 46.2 % 54.4 (15)%
Home video $ 33 $ 30.2 9%
Gross units shipped 3,775,801 3,300,001 14%
Magazine publishing $ 6. $ 7.7 22)%
Net units sold 2,003,50! 2,344,801 (15)%
Other $ 2t  $ 2.4 4 %
Total $ 87.¢ $ 94.¢ (M%
increase

Profit Contribution -Consumer Products 2012 2011 (decrease)
Licensing $ 36.C $ 40.2 (11)%
Home video 16.7 15.1 11%
Magazine publishing 0.7 0.2 25C %
Other 0.4 0.t (20)%
Total $ 53¢ % 56.1 (4%

Profit contribution margin 61% 58%

Licensing revenues decreased $8.1 millibA012 as compared 2011, as weaker performanaeriideo game category was offset in pal
increases in our collectibles category. Our vidamg licensing revenues decreased $7.8 million k22@rimarily due to one fewer relee
WWE All Starswhich was originally released in March 2011 and wasrefreshed in 2012. In addition, we experiengaed2% decline in ur
shipments of our franchise video game release 12 20mpared to unit shipments of our comparableo/igime release in 2011. The declir
unit shipments of our annual franchise video gaelease was due to difficult trends in our intermai markets, broader industry challer
and a reduction in the number of gaming platforha supported our franchise video game. Licensoyj of revenues decreas#8.8 millior
from 2011, primarily due to lower talent expensieln by the mix of products sold. The licensingfjircontribution margin increased #8%
compared to 74% in 2011.

On December 19, 2012, our former video game licerddQ declared bankruptcy. In February 2013, thenfany and THQ reached
agreement to terminate its video game license, wiaigreement was approved by the U.S. BankruptcyrtGmu February 19, 2013.
connection with this termination, the Company wdives rights to the preetition amounts due under its license agreemetiit WHQ, an
THQ agreed to transfer certain intellectual propeights and to pay post-petition royalties to W\MEMarch 31, 2013.

In connection with the THQ license termination, Bempany will recognize approximately $8.0 milliohrevenue during the first quarter
2013 relating to the unrecognized portion of anasae received when the Company entered into thadie agreement with THQ in 2009. /
result of THQ's bankruptcy, the Company will not ddgle collect and recognize a portion of anticidateyalties due in the first quarter
approximately $4.0 million to $5.0 million, and dorot believe that this loss will have a materderse effect on the Company's busir
financial condition or results of operations. Addlially, upon termination of the agreement with THRe Company entered into a muyléal
agreement with Take-Two to be the Company's videoalicensee. Takéwo will assume distribution of our existing catglof videogame
as well as develop, publish and distribute newdijteffective with the release of the Company'siahfianchise game WWE2K14 in late 2013.

Magazine publishing revenues decreased $1lliomin 2012 as compared to 2011, driven by weaker newdsdemand as a result of
continued overall decline in the magazine publighimdustry. Net units sold decreased by 15p@rtially due to a decline in the numbe
issues published. We published twelve issueSVWOYE Magazing ten issues ofWWE Kidsmagazine and three special issues in 20:
compared to twelve, ten and six, respectively,hl2 Magazine publishing cost of revenues
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decreased by $2.2 million , primarily as a restith 9% decrease in unit production. Publishindipoontribution margin increased to 12i%6
2012 from 3% in 2011.

Home video revenues increased $2.6 millio20&2 as compared to 2011 primarily due to a 1défease in units shipped and impro
sellthrough rates at retail, which were partially offsg a 15% decline in average sales price per Wetreleased 35 titles in 2012 compare
28 titles in 2011. Additionally, we experienced gtb in international markets and digital sales @f6smillion and $0.3 million, respective
Home video cost of revenues increased by $1.0 anilffom 2011 due to higher costs associated with dapbn. Home video pro
contribution margin increased to 51% from 50% i1 20

Digital Media

The following chart provides performance resultsdor Digital Media segment (dollars in millionxcept average revenues per order):

increase
RevenuesDigital Media 2012 2011 (decrease)
WWE.com $ 197 % 12.F 58 %
WWEShop 14.¢ 15.€ (5)%
Total $ 34t 3 28.1 23%
Average WWEShop revenues per order (dollars) $ 4766 $ 47.1¢ 1%
increase
Profit Contribution -Digital Media 2012 2011 (decrease)
WWE.com $ 106 % 6.5 63 %
WWEShop 3.€ 3.C 20 %
Total $ 142z % 9.t 49 %
Profit contribution margin 41% 34%

WWE.com revenues increased $7.2 millior2012 as compared to 2011, primarily driven by rprogramming agreements with YouT!
and Hulu. Additionally, advertising revenue incre@st1.5 million from the prior year. WWE.com co$trevenues increased $3.1 milliam
2012 due to increased expenses related to the grodwand distribution of this new content. WWE.cpnofit contribution margin increased
54% from 52% in 2011.

WWEShop revenues decreased $0.8 mililor2012 compared to 2011, as a 7% decrease inuher of orders processed was o
slightly by a 1% increase in average revenues pgero WWEShop cost of revenues decreased by $1lmin 2012, primarily due 1
decreased costs of material as a result of pradixctWWEShop profit contribution margin increased28% from 19% in 2011.

25




WWE Studios

The following table provides detailed informatiom our WWE Studios’ segment (in millions):

Fgﬁtmure For the Year Ended December 31,
Production Inception to-date Revenue Profit (Loss)
. Assets-net as )
Release Production of Dec 31, Profit
Title Date Costs* 2012 Revenue (Loss) 2012 2011 2012 2011

Self - Distributed films

No Holds Barred July 2012 — — 0.4 0.1 0.4 N/A 0.1 N/A

The Reunion Oct 2011 6. 1.7 2.1 4.7 0.9 2.4 (0.5) 4.2

That's What | Am  April 2011 4.7 0.4 0.¢ (5.0 — 0.¢ 0.7) @9

Knucklehead Oct 2010 6.4 0.7 4.3 4.7 0.1 0.7 (0.2 (2.9

43.7 7.9 21.€ (31.6) 1. 11.1 @1 (249

Marine 2 Dec 2009 2.3 0.5 2.€ 0.7 0.4 11 — 0.2

BELC 3 Jan 2009 2.5 0.2 2.€ 0.2 0.2 0.6 0.2 —

The Marine Oct 2006 20.z 0.1 38.< 15.¢ 11 1.€ 0.8 1.3

0
=
o
I
I

Completed but not released 7.¢ 7.8 — — — — — —

In development 0.€ 0.€ — 4.7 — — (2.0 (0.9

* Production costs are presented net of the aswsackgenefit of production incentives.

Revenue recognition for our feature films variepataling on the method of distribution and the extédrcontrol the Company exercit
over the distribution and related expenses. Wecesesignificant control over our salfstributed films and as a result, we record disttior
revenue and related expenses on a gross basis finaocial statements. Thindarty distribution partners control the distributiand marketin
of our licensed films, and as a result, we recagn@&enue on a net basis after the tipiadty distributor recoups distribution fees andenge
and results have been reported to us. This typicaiturs in periods subsequent to the initial deaf the film.

At December 31, 2012 , the Company had $23l&m(net of accumulated amortization and impairment@és) of feature film productic
assets capitalized on our Consolidated BalancetSkée review and revise estimates of ultimate rereeand participation costs at e
reporting period to reflect the most current infatian available. If estimates for a filmultimate revenue are revised and indicate afsigni
decline in a films profitability or if events or circumstances chartlyat indicate we should assess whether the dhievof a film is less than
unamortized film costs, we calculate the film'sreated fair value
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using a discounted cash flow model. We updatednate revenue projections during the year ended rbleee31, 2012 noting lower tha
expected home video revenue for our feature fldasding the RuleandBarricade. As a result of the decline in expected profitapibf thest
releases, we prepared a discounted cash flow anédydetermine the fair value of the associatadiufie film production assets. This resulte
impairment charges, representing the excess afetterded net carrying value over the estimatedviaime, of $1.2 milliorfor the year ende
December 31, 2012 . During 2011, we recorded impetit charges of $23.4 million , of which $19.4 ioill related to seléistributed film:
and $4.0 related to licensed films

During 2012, the Company entered into an agreerteeno-distribute the feature filnThe Day, domestically. This film was released vi
limited theatrical release in August and on DVDNnvember 2012. The Company intends to recognizema¥ generated by this film it
manner similar to how it recognizes revenue fotidsnsed films; on a net basis, after distributieas and expenses have been recoupe
expenses and results have been reported to ue1l) the Company did not record any revenue adsocieith this release.

WWE Studios revenues decreased $13.0 millio@012 compared to 2011 as there was a $9.2 mitlemrease in revenue for our self
distributed films and a $3.8 million decrease inerue for our licensed films in 2012. The decreiasesvenue associated with our self
distributed films was attributable to the relatperformance and timing of releases from our mowgfplio as three films were releasec
2012 compared to four in the prior yearhe decrease in revenue associated with licenfad 6 primarily attributable to the age of oum
library, with the most recent film released in 2009

WWE Studios cost of revenues decreased $37.0 mii@012 as compared to 2011. The decrease is plyndae to a $22.2 million reductis
in impairment charges. Additionally, amortizatiohpsoduction assets decreased $8.8 million andibligion expenses decreased $6.0 mi
due to lower revenues and timing of the film reéssam 2012 as compared to 2011.

Selling, General & Administrative Expenses

The following table presents the amounts and pémtenge of certain significant overhead itemsléislin millions):

increase
2012 2011 (decrease)

Staff related $ 59.: $ 56.€ 5%
Management incentive compensation 11.¢ 4.3 177%
Legal, accounting and other professional 18.4 15.€ 16%
Travel and entertainment expenses 5.€ 4.¢ 18%
Advertising, marketing and promotion 5.4 5.3 2%
Corporate insurance 3.€ 3.t 11%
Bad debt 285 (0.7) 457%
All other 29.2 26.¢ 9%
Total SG&A $ 136« $ 116.7 17%

SG&A as a percentage of net revenues 28% 24%

Selling, general and administrative expenses ise@d 7%in 2012 compared to 2011. Management incentive emsation, includin
bonus and stock compensation, increased $7.6 miticeflect amounts expected to be paid based oCtdmpany's operating performar
The 2011 results reflect the expensing of previpisdued stock compensation and minimal incentvamensation as the Company did
meet performance targets in 2011. Staff relatecesgs in 2012 increased primarily due to the highgtaff to create new programming
support our emerging content and distribution e$foincluding the full year impact of employeesediin the previous year. TI$#2.5 millior
increase in legal, accounting and other professifees in 2012 is primarily due to $1.5 million @onsulting costs related to the poter
network. Selling, general and administrative expengicludes $8.2 millioin operating expenses associated with our emergimgent an
distribution efforts including a potential netwatlkring 2012 compared to $4.0 million the prior year
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Depreciation and Amortization
(dollars in millions)

increase
2012 2011 (decrease)
Depreciation and amortization $ 20.C $ 15.C 33%

Depreciation expense for 2012 reflects higher priypend equipment balances due to purchases atsibeigth the expansion of our cont
and distribution efforts.

Investment and Other Income (Expense)
(dollars in millions)

increase
2012 2011 (decrease)
Investment income, net $ 22 $ 2.1 5%
Interest expense .7 (0.6) 18: %
Other expense, net (2.0 (1.6) (38)%

Interest expense for 2012 includes the full yegrdnt of amortization of loan origination costs d®e on the unused portion of our revoh
credit facility, which was established in Septemb@t1. Other expense, net for 2012 includes raaliaeeign exchange gains and losses,
certain non-income state taxes.

Income Taxes
(dollars in millions)

increase
2012 2011 (decrease)
Provision for income taxes $ 11 $ 12.1 (N%

Effective tax rate 26% 33%

The 2012 and 2011 effective tax rate was positivielyacted by a $4.4 millioand $0.6 million benefit, respectively, from recagm of
previously unrecognized tax benefits. The 2012 fiepamarily relates to the settlement of varicaugdits, including the State of Connecti
the IRS, and other state and local jurisdictiortse 2011 benefit primarily relates to the statutdiroftations expiring in jurisdictions in whi
the Company had taken uncertain tax positions.
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Year Ended December 31, 2011 compared to Year Erdecember 31, 2010
(dollars in millions)

Summary

increase
Net Revenues 2011 2010 (decrease)
Live and Televised Entertainment ~§ 340 $ 3BLE 2%
Consumer Products 94.¢ 97.4 3%
Digital Media 281  28¢ (%
WWE Studios 20.¢ 19.€ 7%

Live and Televised Entertainment 130.% 134.¢ 3%

Digital Media 9.5 12.¢ (26)%

Total 168.5 203.¢

Depreciation and amortization 15.C 113 28%

Investment income, net 2.1 2.C 5%

Other expense, net (1.6 (2.0 (20)%

Provision for income taxes 12.1 28.t (58)%

A7%

Our Live and Televised Entertainment segment regenincreased primarily due to the increased revenmueour pay-periew anc
television rights businesses of 12% and 4%, resmdgt Our Consumer Products segment experiencb#oancrease in licensing reven
reflecting an increase in sales of both toys adéwigames as compared to 2010. Our WWE Studiosesegeflected a $1.3 million increast

revenue primarily due to the release of four sdfributed films in 2011 compared to two self-distited films in 2010.

Profit contribution was negatively impacted by 8%¥2million impairment charge recorded in 2011 tiefato our WWE Studios’ business.

In 2011, we expanded efforts to create new progranasiticipation of increased distribution oppoitigs. As a result, we have incur
expenses associated with our emerging content &tdbdtion efforts, including increased staffing treate new programs and legal

consulting fees of approximately $4 million.

29




The following chart provides performance resultd &ay drivers for our Live and Televised Entertagmhsegment:

Live events $ 1047 $ 104.¢ — %

&

International 39.¢ 39.¢ — %

Number of North American events 241 252 (5%

Average North American ticket price (dollars) $ 4211 $  39.4¢ 7%

Average international attendance 6,70( 7,80( (14%

Venue merchandise $ 182  $ 18. (1)%

©

Pay-per-view $ 78.2 70.2 12%

Number of buys of pay-per-views 3,842,10 3,631,101 6 %

Domestic retail pricé/restleMania(dollars) $ 5498 $ 549t — %

Television rights fees $ 1318 $ 127.«( 4%

&

51.z2

&

International 45.4 13%

Total $ 340 $  33L¢ 2%

Average weekly household ratings RAW 3.€ 3.t 25%

[N
[y

Average weekly household ratings WeWE Superstars N/A

Live events $ 287 $ 27.4 5%

Pay per view 40.7 39.¢ 2%

Other 2.7) 1. (242)%

Profit contribution margin 38% 41%
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Live events revenues were essentially unchangecbagpared to 2010. In our North America live evebtsiness, we experienced
increase in sponsorship revenues of $1.2 milliohickv was offset by a decrease in revenues of $@lBmdue to 12 fewer events. Cost
revenue for live events decreased by $1.2 milliefiecting decreases in talertated expenses of $1.5 million due to the twébweer Nortt
American events. The live events profit contribntioargin increased to 27% from 26% in 2010.

Venue merchandise revenues were essentially unebaagcompared to 2010, as the impact of 8% loweredtic attendance in 2011\
offset by a 6% increase in per capita merchangisading by our fans at domestic events. The vereretmandise profit contribution mar
increased to 44% from 43% in 2010.

Pay-perview revenues increased by $8.1 million in 201kasipared to 2010, reflecting a 6% increase in totsis in addition to a 6
increase in average revenues per buy. The incri@asiee total number of buys was primarily driven the performance of our ann
WrestleManiaevent. In 2011, we recorded $24.2 million in revefom approximately 1.1 million buys fo¥restieMania XXVIhs compare
to $19.0 million from approximately 0.9 million bsiyfor WrestleMania XXVin 2010. The increase in revenues per buy was mrbye the
higher percentage of domestic buys, which generaigher price per buy, as compared to 2010. Clagvenues for pay-periew increased t
$7.2 million, primarily due to increases in prodantcosts, talent expense and advertising exparetat®ed to initiatives designed to incre
revenue. The pay-per-view profit contribution mardecreased to 52% from 57% in 2010.

Television rights fees increased by $4.5 milliori2Bil1 as compared to 2010, primarily due to in@gas international markets, parti
offset by a decrease in overall domestic revenimsrnationally, our television rights fees increddy $5.8 million, primarily due to a n
agreement with a Canadian television distributargd @aenewals and contractual increases with oth&rnational television distributo
Domestically, television rights fees decreased by3 $nillion, due primarily to the absence of rigfiees for oulNXT and WWE Supersta
programs, which moved to WWE.com in October 2018 April 2011, respectively. During 2011, we madstiategic decision to withhc
several hours of these programs so we could dig&ithe content on existing and future platformkisTdecrease was partially offset
increased sponsorship revenues and contractuas figd increases charged to our domestic televdigtnbutors for ouRAWandSmackDow
programs. Television rights cost of revenues irggdaby $5.9 million primarily due to increased ¥&®n sponsorship costs of $2.7 mill
and increased production costs of $3.2 million tuemcreased staffing and three additional televiseents in 2011 as compared to 2010.
television rights fee profit contribution marginadeased to 43% from 45% in 2010.
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Consumer Products

The following chart provides performance resultd key drivers for our Consumer Products segmerilaf@an millions):

increase

Revenues Consumer Products 2011 2010 (decrease)
Licensing $ 542 % 51.7 5%
Magazine publishing $ 77 % 11.C (30)%
Net units sold 2,344,80i 3,068,00! (24)%
Home video $ 304 % 32.1 (5)%
Gross units shipped 3,300,001 3,559,101 ("%
Other $ 24 % 2.€ (8)%
Total $ 94¢ % 97.4 )%
increase

Profit Contribution -Consumer Products 2011 2010 (decrease)
Licensing $ 402 $ 38.¢ 5%
Magazine publishing 0.2 0.7 (7D)%
Home video 15.1 16.C (6)%
Other 0.t 0.€ (17)%
Total $ 56.1 $ 55.7 1%

Profit contribution margin 59% 57%

Licensing revenues increased by $2.7 million in228% compared to 2010, driven by the improved perdace of our toy and video ga
categories. Our toy category licensing revenueseased by $1.1 million driven by Mattelincreased product offerings. Our video g
category licensing revenues increased by $8.0amijlldriven by the release of oWWE All Starsvideo game, for which we did not hav
corresponding release in 2010. In addition, dugigl we increased the royalty rate we receive foomvideo game licensee. Offsetting tt
increases was a $4.2 million decline in our nogslnd collectibles categories, driven by softiresise international market and the absen:
a successful product launch by a licensee thatedeollectibles licensing revenues in 2010. Licegsiast of revenues increased by $0.8 mi
as compared to 2010. The licensing profit contidrumargin was 74% in both 2011 and 2010.

Magazine publishing revenues decreased $3.3 millid®011 as compared to 2010, driven by weaker stangd demand as a result o
overall decline in the magazine publishing indusit units sold decreased by 24%, while #elbugh rates improved slightly. We publis
12 issues oOWWE Magazinén 2011 as compared to 13 issues in 2010, 10 issUMNVE Kidsmagazine and 6 special issues in both 201:
2010. Magazine publishing cost of revenues deccebgeb2.8 million, primarily as a result of a 25%cgease in production. Publishing pr
contribution decreased to a profit of $0.2 millior2011 from a profit of $0.7 million in 2010.

Home video revenues decreased $1.7 million in 284 tompared to 2010, driven by a 7% decrease is shipped. This decrease
offset by favorable setlirough rates experienced during 2011 as compar@810. We released 28 titles in 2011 as comparé9tin 201(
Home video cost of revenues decreased by $0.8omitlue to decreased duplication costs. Home videfit gontribution margin was 50%
both 2011 and 2010.
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Digital Media

The following chart provides performance resultsdor Digital Media segment (dollars in millionxcept average revenues per order):

increase
Revenues Digital Media 2011 2010 (decrease)
WWE.com $ 125 $ 14.¢ (16)%
WWEShop 15.€ 14.C 11%
Total $ 281 $ 28.¢ ()%
Average WWEShop revenues per order (dollars) $ 47.1¢ $ 47.1:
increase
Profit Contribution -Digital Media 2011 2010 (decrease)
WWE.com $ 6 $ 9.7 (39)%
WWEShop 3.C 3.2 (6)%
Total $ 98 $ 12.¢ (26)%
Profit contribution margin 34% 45%

WWE.com revenues decreased $2.4 million ih128s compared to 2010, primarily due to a decrgasaline advertising of $2.9 millio
WWE.com cost of revenues increased by $0.8 millioB011, driven by increased expenses relatedréarsting and sponsorships, in addi
to $0.3 million less benefit from production taxémtives as compared to 2010. WWE.com profit cbatibn margin decreased to 52% in 2
from 65% in 2010.

WWEShop revenues increased $1.6 million in 201tampared to 2010, driven by a 13% increase in tihmaber of orders process
WWEShop cost of revenues increased by $1.8 millio2010, primarily due to increased material cagt$0.7 million and increased shipp
charges of $0.6 million, both driven by the inceshsevenue and number of orders. WWEShop profitritiution margin decreased to 19%
2011 from 23% in 2010, primarily due to increasetounts and promotional offers.
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WWE Studios

The following table provides detailed informatiom our WWE Studios’ segment (in millions):

Fgﬁmre For the Year Ended December 31,
Production Inception to-date Revenue Profit (Loss)
Assets-net as
Release Production of Dec 31, Profit
Title Date Costs* 2011 Revenue (Loss) 2011 2010 2011 2010

Self - Distributed films
The Reunion Oct2011 $ 6. $ 1.6 $ 2.4 $ 4.2 $ 24 $NA $ (42 $NA
Inside Out Sept 2011 5.1 1.3 2.1 (3.9 2.1 N/A 3.9 N/A
That's What | Am April 2011 4.7 0.5 0.€ 4.9 0.¢ N/A 4.9 N/A
The Chaperone Mar 2011 5.8 0.¢ 4.C 3.9 4.C N/A 3.9 N/A
Knucklehead Oct 2010 6.4 0.8 4.2 4.0 0.7 315 (2.9 (2.3
Legendary Sept 2010 5.2 1.7 6.2 1.9 1.C 5.2 (0.9 (1.6)

34.2 7.1 19.¢ (22.1 11.1 8.8 (219.9 (2.7
Licensed films
Marine 2 Dec 2009 2.3 0.8 2.2 0.7 1.1 1.2 0.3 0.t
12 Rounds Mar 2009 19.7 7.8 9.C (2.9 5.€ 3.E (2.8 —
BELC 3 Jan 2009 2.t 0.3 2.2 0.1 0.€ 1.2 —
The Condemned May 2007 17.t — 10.¢ (6.€) 0.t 1.€ 04 1.4
The Marine Oct 2006 20.2 0.1 37.2 14.€ 1.8 2.¢ 1.3 1t
See No Evil May 2006 10.4 0.5 7.C (2.9 0.2 0.4 (1.2) —

72.€ 9.5 68.5 3.C 9.8 10.¢ (2.0 34
Completed but not released 11.4 6.C — (5.9 — — (5.9 —
In production — — — — — — — —
In development N/A 1.C — (3.) — — 0.9 0.3
Total $ 1182 $ 23.€ ga00( $ 884 gapoo $ (2760 _ $ 20¢ $ 196 $ (276 $ 04

* Production costs are presented net of the agsockenefit of production incentives.

Revenue recognition for our feature films variepateding on the method of distribution and the extdrcontrol the Company exercit
over the distribution and related expenses. Wecgsesignificant control over our salfstributed films and as a result, we record disttior
revenue and related expenses on a gross basis finaocial statements. Thinparty distribution partners control the distributiand marketin
of our licensed films, and as a result, we recagn@&enue on a net basis after the tipiadty distributor recoups distribution fees andenge
and results have been reported to us. This typicalturs in periods subsequent to the initial rdeaf the film.

WWE Studios revenues increased $1.3 million in 20&fnpared to 2012 driven by four newly released distributed films. In 201
revenues from these newly released films and tWledigtributed films released in 2010 increased $2iiam, while revenues for our s
licensed films decreased $1.0 million.

At December 31, 2011, the Company had $23.6 milli@t of accumulated amortization and impairmertrghs) of feature film producti
assets capitalized on our balance sheet. We reamglwevise estimates of ultimate revenue and paation costs at each reporting perio
reflect the most current information availableestimates for a film’s ultimate revenue are reviaad indicate a significant decline in a fikn’
profitability or if events or circumstances chartbat indicate we should assess whether the fairevaf a film is less than its unamortized 1
costs, we calculate the fils’'estimated fair value using a discounted cashsflovodel. After updating estimates of ultimate rexemn:
participation costs for current and pending reledseeflect lower

34




Table of Contents

than expected home video revenues and higher ipatimn costs for certain releases, we noted siaif declines in the expected profitab
of certain films for which we prepared a discountagh flow analysis to determine the fair valuehaf feature film production asset. T
resulted in us recording impairment charges of 428illion during 2011. These impairment chargegesent the excess of the recordec
carrying value over the estimated fair value.

WWE Studios total cost of revenues increased $g8liion primarily due to the above $23.4 million ofpairment charges, an increas
amortization of production assets of $2.6 milliowdan increase in distribution related expensethiselfdistributed films of $2.4 million. |
2011, cost of revenues for our sdi§tributed films included $14.0 million of impaiemt charges. In addition to the impairment che
recorded for our released self-distributed film® aso incurred impairment charges of $5.4 millietated to two selflistributed films the
were completed but not yet released as of Deceihe2011. Cost of revenues for our licensed filnséased $4.4 million in 2011 compe
to 2010 due primarily to the impairment charge®rded associated with two of our films of $4.0 roil.

Selling, General & Administrative Expenses

The following table presents the amounts ardgnt change of certain significant overhead it@o#ars in millions):

increase
2011 2010 (decrease)

Staff related $ 56.6 $ 47.4 19 %
Management incentive compensation 4.3 12.€ (66)%
Legal, accounting and other professional 15.¢ 11.5 41 %
Travel and entertainment expenses 4.¢ 4.2 17%
Advertising, marketing and promotion 5.3 6.5 (18)%
Corporate insurance 3.t 3.t — %
Bad debt (0.7) 0.8 (188)%
All other 26.¢ 23.1 1€ %
Total SG&A $ 116.7  $ 109.< 7%

SG&A as a percentage of net revenues 24% 23%

The $5.6 million increase in staff related expense2011 as compared to 2010 reflects a $3.8 millicrease in salary expenses
primarily to increased headcount, a $3.0 millioor@ase in severance expenses and a $2.4 milliogaise in benefits costs as a result of hi
medical costs, partially offset by a $3.6 millioecdease in accrued management incentive compemsatie increased headcount is primi
due to the hiring of staff to assist in creatingvn@ogramming to support our emerging content aisttidution efforts. Stock compensat
expense decreased $4.7 million as compared to 20k decreases in management incentive compensaibistock compensation expe
were due to the Company not achieving certain perdoce targets for 2011. The increase in legabwating and other professional fee
2011 was due primarily to increased legal and déingucosts associated with the expansion of omtextt and distribution platforms. Over
selling, general and administrative expenses iredugbproximately $4 million as a result of experesesociated with our emerging content
distribution efforts.

Depreciation and Amortization
(dollars in millions)

increase
2011 2010 (decrease)
Depreciation and amortization $ 15.C $ 11.7 28%

The increase depreciation expense from 2011 refteetabsence of a $1.7 million benefit from treogmition of an infrastructure tax cre
received in 2010, in addition to higher propertyg @quipment balances in 2011. The credit receiné®010 related to assets placed in servi
previous years, and the adjustment to depreciatipense reflects the amount of previously recoghézgpense associated with the reductic
the related asset cost.
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Investment and Other Income (Expense)
(dollars in millions)

increase

2011 2010 (decrease)
Investment income, net $ 21 % 2.C 5%
Interest expense $ 0.6) $ 0.9 10C %
Other expense, net $ (1.6) $ (2.0 (200%

Other expense, net includes realized foreign exgphagains and losses, the revaluation of warrartsihe publiclytraded former licens:
and certain nomcome related taxes. In 2011, we recorded realfeegign exchange losses of $0.4 million as comgacelosses of $1
million in 2010. During 2010, we recognized markrtarket adjustments of a gain of $0.6 million reigtio the revaluation of the warra
held in a publicly-traded former licensee. Theserargs were exercised in 2011.

Income Taxes
(dollars in millions)

increase

2011 2010 (decrease)
Provision for income taxes $ 121 % 28.t (58)%
Effective tax rate 33% 35% (6)%

The 2011 effective tax rate was positively impadbgda higher proportion of qualified productioniaities in 2011, which resulted in
higher rate of IRC Section 199 deductions relatov@ongualifying activities. 2011 and 2010 were positwehpacted by a $0.6 million a
$1.3 million benefit, respectively, from recognitiof previously unrecognized tax benefits, primagk a result of the statute of limitati
expiring in jurisdictions in which the Company had#ten uncertain tax positions.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

During 2011, we entered into a thgasar senior unsecured revolving credit facilitylwit syndicated group of banks, with JPMorgan C
acting as administrative agent. The revolving dréatility provides for a $200.0 million line of edit that expires in September 2014, ur
extended. As of December 31, 201®&e had no amounts outstanding under this craditityy. Under the terms of the revolving creditiféy,
we are subject to certain financial covenants asstrictions, including limitations with respect tar indebtedness, liens, mergers
acquisitions, dispositions of assets, investmergpjtal expenditures, and transactions with aféa In addition, the revolving credit facil
restricts our ability to pay dividends if a defaoitevent of default has occurred and is contintirggeunder. In addition to the senior unsec
revolving credit facility, the Company continuattyaluates financing options that are cost effecive that will add to the Compayfinancia
flexibility. To this end, as the Company explorelitional content distribution and production stgies, the Company may seek additi
sources of financing. We also regularly assesafiatestrategic acquisitions.

We had cash and short-term investments of $152llbmiand $155.8 million as of December 31, 2012 &011, respectively. Our de
balances at the corresponding dates were $0.@maind $1.6 million , respectively.

Over the past three years, our aggregate cash flowsoperating activities were $166.0 million ,raoet capital expenditures we$&4.z
million and our aggregate dividends paid were $361illion . We believe that cash provided from operationsstieng cash and investme
balances and funds available from our revolvinglitracility will be sufficient to meet our operag requirements, including dividends, fea
film production requirements, projected capital exgitures, additional operational costs associafét our increased content production
distribution initiatives and dividends over the h&2 months.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash flows from operating activities were $63.1lionl $63.2 million and $39.8 million for the yeagaded December 31, 2012 , 2k
2010, respectively. The Company recorded signifieapairments in the prior year for which the pwotion
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spend took place in 2010. While these impairmanfsaicted the prior year net income, the cash flopeich was in 2010. The timing of feat
films production had a significant impact on then@any's cash provided by operating activities.

We spent approximately $6.3 million more on thedpction of feature films in 2012 after recogmitiof film tax incentives. During 2012,
spent $9.4 million on feature film production adies, compared to $8.5 million in 2011. During 20ive received $1.9 milliom incentive:
related to feature film production. During 2011, reeeived $7.3 million in incentives related tottea film production activities.

We anticipate spending between $15.0 million an@lG2nillion on feature film production activitiesidng the year ended December 31, 2013

We recognized $8.0 million in nditm related incentives in 2012 and $6.6 milliontire prior year period. During the year ended Dédim
31, 2013, we anticipate receiving between $7.0imnilland $9.0 million in nodm related incentives, including credits assaethtwitk
qualifying capital projects.

During 2012, the Company spent $6.1 millionproduce additional content for television. Thefferts were consistent with our previot
announced plans to create additional content fribdution eitheion a network or via other distribution platform&iebe amounts are incluc
in Television production assets on our Consolidd@athnce Sheets. We anticipate spending approxigjn&&0 million to $5.0 million t
produce additional content during the year endedebBéer 31, 2013 and incurring $8.0 million to $1thblion in incremental operatit
expenses to support these initiatives during theegaeriod.

During 2012, we received a $7.5 million annadvance from one of our licensees; the correspgnoliyment relating to 2011 was rece
in December 2010. Additionally, during 2012, weaiged an $8.5 million refund relating to an ovenpant of taxes in 2011; during 2011,
received a comparable refund of $9.0 million relgtio an overpayment of taxes in 2010. The Compaagle approximately $5.1 million
tax payments during 2012 in conjunction with theotation of outstanding tax matters. Additionattye Company has accrued $11.7 millio
incentive compensation at December 31, 2€Hat is expected to be paid in the first quarter2013. The Company paid $0.7 million
incentive compensation during the first quartee@12 which was accrued at December 31, 2011.

Our accounts receivable represent a signifigammtion of our current assets and relate prifbipn a limited number of custome
distributors and licensees that produce consumedugts containing our trademarks. At December 31,22 we had one customer w
represented 14%f our gross accounts receivable balance. Chamg#sei financial condition or operations of our dimitors, customers
licensees may result in increased delayed paynent®npayments which would adversely impact our cash gldk@m operating activitic
and/or our results of operations.

On December 19, 2012, our former video game liced$4Q declared bankruptcy. As a result, the Compasgrved $1.7 million as bad d
for amounts that were due the Company from THQ etdbnber 31, 2012. The amounts reserved primaldyec to sponsorship agreem
and various services WWE provided to THQ in suppbthe release dVWE '13.

In February 2013, the Company and THQ reached seeagent to terminate its video game license, whgteement was approved by the |
Bankruptcy Court on February 19, 2013. In connectigth this termination, the Company waived itshigyto the pregetition amounts dt
under its license agreement with THQ, and THQ ajtedransfer certain intellectual property rightgl to pay pospetition royalties to WW
by March 31, 2013.

In connection with the THQ license termination, Bempany will recognize approximately $8.0 milliohrevenue during the first quarter
2013 relating to the unrecognized portion of anasxe received when the Company entered into thadie agreement with THQ in 2009. /
result of THQ's bankruptcy, the Company will notdide to collect and recognize a portion of antitda royalties due in the first quarte
approximately $4.0 million to $5.0 million, and dorot believe that this loss will have a materderse effect on the Company's busir
financial condition or results of operations. Addlially, upon termination of the agreement with THRe Company entered into a muyléal
agreement with Take-Two to be the Company's videoglicensee. Takéwo will assume distribution of our existing catglof video game
as well as develop, publish and distribute newdijteffective with the release of the Company'siahfianchise game WWE2K14 in late 2013.
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Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Cash flows used in investing activities were $1iflion , $30.7 million and $40.4 million for theegrs ended December 31, 2012011
and 2010, respectively. In the current year, welpased $19.2 million and had $45.2 milliohmaturities of investment securities. Include
the $45.2 millionwas $11.0 million of proceeds from auction rateusiies that were called at par by their issuere Tompany also invest
$5.0 million in Series B Preferred Stock of Tout Industries,. Ifihis investment is included in Investment Se@sitin our Consolidatt
Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2012 .

Capital expenditures including other assets wepagmately $33.9 million , $28.0 million and $128llion in 2012 , 2011 and 2010
respectively. The increase in capital expenditimebhe current and prior year periods was primatdig to the additional investment in asse
support our efforts to create and distribute nemteat, including through a potential network.

Capital expenditures for 2013 are estimated to edmefween $50.0 million and $60.0 million, incluglimpproximately $33.0 million
$37.0 million is estimated to be spent on repla@ng aging corporate jet and $3.0 million to $7.0liam in support of the creation of ne
programming and increased production activities eadtent distribution. This amount may change basedhe demand for content ¢
distribution requirements.

We regularly assess potential strategic imaests and acquisitions.

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Cash flows used in financing activities were $3®i6ion , $49.8 million and $79.4 million for theegrs ended December 31, 202011
and 2010, respectively. The decrease in cash flows usdih@mcing activities was due primarily to a redoatiin dividend payments. In 20:
we paid four quarterly dividends of $0.12 on ala€d A and Class B common shares for an aggregateraraf $35.8 million. In 2011, w
paid one quarterly cash dividend of $0.36 on alisSIA common shares, and $0.24 on all Class B conghares, and three quarterly ¢
dividends of $0.12 on all Class A and Class B comrsloares for an aggregate amount of $47.8 millior2010, we paid four quarterly ce
dividends of $0.36 on all Class A common shared,&h24 on all Class B common shares, for an aggeegmount of $83.6 million. In Ap
2011, the Board of Directors adjusted the Compamyésterly dividend to $0.12 per share of commaulsheld by the Company'Class A an
Class B shareholders, including members of the Mudiafamily. Our Board of Directors regularly evaksmthe Compang’dividend polic
and determines the dividend rate each quarter.l&ed of dividends will continue to be influenceg tmany factors, including, among ot
things, our liquidity and historical and projectealsh flow, our strategic plan (including alternativses of capital), our financial results
condition, contractual and legal restrictions oa payment of dividends (including under our revadyvcredit facility), general economic ¢
competitive conditions and such other factors as Board of Directors may consider relevant fromédino time. We cannot assure
stockholders that dividends will be paid in theufet, or that, if paid, dividends will be at the saamount or with the same frequency as il
past.

During 2011, we entered into a three year seni@ecured revolving credit facility with a syndicatgobup of banks, with JPMorgan Ch
acting as administrative agent. As part of thedaation, the Company paid $1.8 millionorigination costs, which are reflected as aafseasl
in our financing activities. The revolving creddcility provides for a $200.0 million line of credhat expires in September 2014, ur
extended. As of December 31, 201&e had no amounts outstanding under this craditity. Under the terms of the revolving creditifiy,
we are subject to certain financial covenants aggtrictions, including limitations with respect twr indebtedness, liens, mergers
acquisitions, dispositions of assets, investmergpjtal expenditures, and transactions with affiéa In addition, the revolving credit facil
restricts our ability to pay dividends if a defaoitevent of default has occurred and is contindgiregeunder. As of December 31, 2Q1&2e ar
in compliance with the provisions of the revolviergdit facility and are not restricted from payitigidends to our stockholders.

While we do not have specific plans to bormewder this credit facility in the near term, we dannounced initiatives for which we n
borrow going forward including the expansion andate of our production facilities in order to sugpaur emerging content and distribut
strategy. In addition to the senior unsecured rgmglcredit facility, the Company continually evates financing options that are cost effec
and that will add to the Company's financial flekil. To this end, as the Company explores addaiocontent distribution and product
strategies, the Company may seek additional sowftésancing, though there can be no assurancdesiieh financing will be available
acceptable terms, or at all.
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During the year ended December 31, 2012011 and 2010 principal payments on our mortgage were $1,621, $1,169 and $1.(
respectively. This mortgage obligation was paituihduring 2012.

Contractual Obligations

W e have entered into various contracts under whielase required to make guaranteed payments, imgudi

e Various operating leases for facilities and saffises with terms ranging from one to ten yei

e Service contracts with certain independent cortracincluding our talent with terms ranging fromeao four year

Our aggregate minimum payment obligations undeselo®ntracts as of December 31, 2012 are as fo(ldolkars in millions):

After
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2017 Total
Operating leases $ 28 $ 2& $ 1€ $ 1t $ 0€ $ 1C $ 10:=
Talent and other commitments 11.2 8.8 2.8 1.7 1.t 5.3 31.z
Total commitments $ 14C $ 11€ $ 4€ $ 32 $ 21 $ 6.2 $ 41¢

Our consolidated balance sheet at December 31, R@lixles $2.8 million in liabilities associated Wwitincertain tax positions (includi
interest and penalties of approximately $0.7 milljowhich is not included in the table above. ThemPany does not expect to pay
settlements related to these uncertain tax posiiini2013.

Seasonality

Our operating results are not materially afdcby seasonal factors; however, our premier eWdnéstlieMania, occurs late in our fir
quarter or early in our second quarter. In addjtimvenues from our licensing and direct sale afsomer products, including our catalc
magazines and internet sites, varies from periogetdod depending on the volume and extent of Saen agreements and marketing
promotion programs entered into during any pardicpkeriod of time, as well as the commercial suscéthe media exposure of our charac
and brand. The timing of revenues related to our E\VStudios segment fluctuates based upon the tiofiogr feature film releases. The tim
of these events as well as the continued introdoaif new product offerings and revenue generatimtets can and will cause fluctuatior
quarterly revenues and earnings.

Inflation
During 2012 , 2011 and 2010, inflation did have a material effect on our business.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2012 , we did not have any nateff-balance sheet arrangements, as defineteim B03(a)(4) of SEC Regulation S
K.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated financial stegets requires us to make estimates that affeatefh@ted amounts of assets, liabilit
revenue and expenses, and the related disclosuoemingent assets and contingent liabilities. WWasebour estimates on our histor
experience and on various other assumptions thaielieve are reasonable under the circumstancesetults of which, form the basis
making estimates about the carrying values of asaad liabilities. The accuracy of these estimatabthe likelihood of future changes def
on a range of possible outcomes and a number adrlyinly variables, many of which are beyond ourtoan Actual results may differ fro
these estimates under different assumptions orittonsl
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We believe the following judgments and estimatescaitical in the preparation of our consolidatethhcial statements.
e Feature Film Production Assets, Ne

Feature film production assets are recorded atdisé of production, including production overhead @et of production incentives. 1
costs for an individual film are amortized in th@portion that revenues bear to managensesdtimates of the ultimate revenue expected
recognized from exploitation, exhibition or salenddnortized feature film production assets are etatlifor impairment each reporting per
We review and revise estimates of ultimate revese participation costs at each reporting periodeftect the most current informati
available. Reductions in ultimate revenue for efdnd/or any increases in estimated participatasiscassociated with a film could indica
significant decline in a film’s profitability. Whethere is a significant decline in a filsprofitability, we calculate the estimated faitugof ¢
film using a discounted cash flow model. If theirasted fair value of the film is less than its umatized costs, we record an impairn
charge for the excess of the carrying value of ftme over the estimated fair value. Impairment aew are recorded as an increas
amortization expense included in cost of revenndké consolidated financial statements.

Our estimate of ultimate revenues for feature filmdudes revenues from all sources for ten yeans fthe date of a filns initial releas¢
We estimate the ultimate revenues based on indasttyCompany specific trends, the historical penmice of similar films, the star powel
the lead actors, and the genre of the film. Poathe release of a feature film and throughoulifés we revise our estimates of revenues b
on expected future results, actual results andrdthewn factors affecting the various distributiorarkets. The most sensitive factor affec
our estimates of ultimate revenue for our featilresfis home video sales. Home video sales fluetli@ised on a variety of factors incluc
audience demand for our titles, the volume andityuaf competing home video products, marketing @nomotional strategies, as well
general economic conditions.

During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2@id recorded aggregate impairment charges of $lllmand $23.4 million,
respectively related to several of our feature dilfldo impairment charge was recorded during 2010 .

As of December 31, 2012 , we had $23.8 milljopt of accumulated amortization and impairmentr@és) in capitalized film producti
costs, which includes 15 released films and 4 fitompleted but not yet released. No assurance eagivien that additional unfavora
changes to revenue and cost estimates will notrpadich, in turn, may result in additional impaegnt charges that might materially affect
results of operations and financial condition.

e Television Production Asset

Television production assets consist of severadagpt television series we have produced for distidon, either on a potential network
through other distribution platforms. Amounts capited include development costs, production cogtstproduction costs and rela
production or posproduction overhead. Costs to produce live eveogramming are expensed when the event is firstdmast. Unamortize
television production assets are evaluated for impent each reporting period. If conditions indeat potential impairment, and the estim
future cash flows are not sufficient to recover timamortized asset, the asset is written downitosédue. In addition, if we determine the
program will not likely air, we expense the remagunamortized asset. During the year ended Deae®&ihe012, 2011, and 2010 we did
expense any television production assets.

e Pay-PerView Programming Revenue Recognitio

Revenues from our pay-peiew programming are recorded when the event eda@nd are based upon our initial estimate of theber o
buys achieved. This initial estimate is based atipinary buy information received from our pay-péew distributors. Final reconciliation
the pay-periew buys occurs within one year and subsequenistdents to the buys are recognized in the pemwdinformation is receive
Historically, adjustments made to our initial esates have not had a significant impact on our negenalthough this may not be the case i
future. Our pay-per-view accounts receivable badamas $10.9 million and $11.7 million at Decemb®yr 2012 and 2011 , respectively.
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e Home Video Returns Allowanct

Revenues from the sales of home video titles arerded at the later of the date of delivery by distributor to retailers, or the date t
these products are made widely available for spleetailers, net of an allowance for estimatedmetuThe allowance for estimated returr
based on historical information, current industgntls and demand for our titles. A change in denfandny of our videos or a change in
home video market could impact the level of videtums. As of December 31, 2042d 2011, our home video returns allowance was
million and $7.1 million, respectively.

e Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Our accounts receivable represent a significartiggoof our current assets and relate principalla imited number of distributors of our pay-
perview, television, home video and magazine prodacis to licensees that produce consumer productsioorg our intellectual proper
and/or trademarks. Adverse changes in general egonconditions and/or contraction in global creditirkets could precipitate liquid
problems among our key distributors, increasingeognosure to bad debts which could negatively impac results of operations and finan
condition. We estimate the collectability of ource&ables and establish allowances for the amotimeeeivables that we estimate to
uncollectible. We base these allowances on oupfiisi collection experience, the length of timer oeceivables are outstanding and
financial condition of individual customers. Chaaga the financial condition of a single major @mer, either adverse or positive, cc
impact the amount and timing of any additional @wloces or reductions that may be required. At Déesr@l, 2012 our largest sing
customer balance was approximately 14% of our gasssunts receivable. As of December 31, 2012 &id 2our allowance for doubtf
accounts was $6.3 million and $2.2 million, respety. The increase in the allowance for doubtfat@unts from the prior year was «
primarily to a reserve established for receivaldiabces from a home video licensee and our videzedaensee who declared bankruptc
December 2012.

e |ncome Taxe:

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are recogniftedthe expected future tax consequences of evitatis have been reflected in
consolidated financial statements. Deferred taxllites and assets are determined based on tferetices between the book and tax bas
particular assets and liabilities and operating logrryforwards, using tax rates in effect for yiears in which the differences are expecte
reverse. A valuation allowance is provided to dffdeferred tax assets if, based upon the availabilgence, including consideration of
planning strategies, it is more-likely-than-notttkame or all of the deferred tax assets will netrealized. As of December 31, 2018ul
deferred tax assets were $20.7 million, less aatimo allowance of $1.6 million. As of December 2012, our deferred tax liabilities we
$11.0 million.

We use a twastep approach to recognizing and measuring unoegaipositions. The first step is to evaluategasitions taken or expect
to be taken in a tax return by assessing whethey #re more likely than not sustainable, basedlysae their technical merits, up
examination, and including resolution of any refatgpeals or litigation process. The second stép measure the associated tax bene
each position, as the largest amount that we beliewore likely than not realizable. Differencedvieen the amount of tax benefits take
expected to be taken in our income tax returnsthe@dmount of tax benefits recognized in our finalngtatements represent our unrecogr
income tax benefits, which we record as a liahil@dur policy is to include interest and penaltielated to unrecognized income tax benefi
a component of income tax expense. At December2B®l?2 , our unrecognized tax benefits including interasd penalties total
approximately $2.8 million.

Due to the American Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012ngesigned into law on January 2, 2013, the Compaay unable to reflect certain

extenders within the year ended December 31, 2BE2dial statements, but will be able to deducs¢htax provisions on the 2012 fed
income tax returns to be filed later in 2013. Thaimdiscrepancy is the use of special expensingsrébr certain film and televisi
productions, or Section 181 deductions. We areectlyy evaluating the impact of this act on the Wssaf operations for the quarter en
March 31, 2013.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2013, the Financial Accounting Standddard ("FASB") issued an accounting standardsigpdn the reporting of amou
reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensieeme, to improve the transparency of reportiftgese reclassifications present the ef
on the line items of net income of significant amizureclassified out of accumulated other comprsiwenincomebut only if the iter
reclassified is required under U.S. GAAP to beassified to net income in its entirety in the samgorting period. This standard updat
effective for reporting periods beginning after Betber 15, 2012. We are currently evaluating theaithpf adopting this accounting stand;
update on our consolidated financial statements.

In October 2012, the FASB issued an accountingdstalts update to amend the requirements relatech tompairment assessment
unamortized film costs and clarify when unamortiZédoch costs should be assessed for impairment. ipeate revises the impairm
assessment to remove the rebuttable presumptiorihghaonditions leading to the writdf of unamortized film costs after the balancee
date existed as of the balance sheet date. Thaeuplda eliminates the requirement that an emitpiporate into fair value measurements
in impairment tests the effects of any changesiimates resulting from the consideration of subsatjevidence, if the information would
have been considered by market participants atnssurement date. This standard update is effeftivienpairment assessments perfori
on or after December 15, 2012. We adopted thiswatow standards update for our film impairmenteasment as of December 31, 2
which did not have a material effect on our cortstd financial statements.

In December 2011, the FASB issued an accountinglatds update that expands the disclosure requitsrfar the offsetting of assets
liabilities related to certain financial instrumerand derivative instruments. The update requiredadures to present both gross informe
and net information for financial instruments anefridative instruments that are eligible for net gengtation due to a right of offset,
enforceable master netting arrangement or simgegeament. This standard update is effective forfieaal year beginning on January 1, 2(
We are currently evaluating the impact of adopthig accounting standards update on our consotidatancial statements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued an accounting atdngpdate to amend the presentation of comprereisiome in financial statements. ~
FASB also issued an accounting standards updd@ed¢ember 2011 that indefinitely deferred certamarficial statement presentation provis
contained in its original June 2011 guidance. Thelance, which became effective January 1, 20h&sgcompanies the option to pre:
comprehensive income in either a single contingtaement or in two separate but consecutive stattmOn January 1, 2012, we adopte!
effective portions of this accounting standardsatpdy presenting comprehensive income in two sépaiut consecutive statements.

In May 2011, the FASB issued an accounting standpddte to amend fair value measurements and dediggelosures. This update relates
major convergence project of the FASB and the hagonal Accounting Standards Board to improve riraéonal Financial Reportil
Standards ("IFRS") and U.S. GAAP. This update tesunl a consistent definition of fair value and enan requirements for measuremer
and disclosure about fair value between IFRS a8l GAAP. The update also changes some fair valiesunement principles and enhar
disclosure requirements related to activities ivdle3 of the fair value hierarchy. On January 112@ve adopted this accounting stan
update which did not have a material effect onamnsolidated financial statements.
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Cautionary Statement for Purposes of the “Safe Hart Provisions of the Private Securities LitigatioReform Act of 1995

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of B9frovides a “safe harbor” for certain statemehgs are forwardeoking and are ni
based on historical facts. When used in this FobrK 1the words “may,” “will,” “could,” “anticipaté, “plan,” “continue,” “project,” “intend’,
“estimate”, “believe”, “expect” and similar exprémss are intended to identify forward-looking stagnts, although not all forwaldeking
statements contain such words. These statemeats telour future plans, objectives, expectatiorsiatentions and are not historical facts
accordingly involve known and unknown risks anderntinties and other factors that may cause theabogsults or the performance by u
be materially different from future results or merhance expressed or implied by such forwlaaking statements. The following factc
among others, could cause actual results to diffaterially from those contained in forward-lookisgtements made in this Form KO- in
press releases and in oral statements made byuthworized officers: (i) risks relating to increagiour content production for distribution
various platforms including the potential creataira WWE network; (ii) our failure to maintain agrrew key agreements could adversely &
our ability to distribute our television and paysew programming; (iii) our failure to continue dgevelop creative and entertaining progr
and events would likely lead to a decline in th@udarity of our brand of entertainment; (iv) ouildae to retain or continue to recruit k
performers could lead to a decline in the appealuofstorylines and the popularity of our brancpfertainment; (v) the unexpected loss o
services of Vincent K. McMahon could adversely efffeur ability to create popular characters anditive storylines or otherwise advers
affect our operations; (vi) decline in general emoic conditions and disruption in financial marketsild adversely affect our business; |
our accounts receivable represent a significantiggorof our current assets and relate principatlyat limited number of distributors &
licensees, increasing our exposure to bad debtpatedtially impacting our results of operationsiiX a decline in the popularity of our bra
of sports entertainment, including as a resultlanges in the social and political climate, coudgeasely affect our business; (ix) change
the regulatory atmosphere and related private séuitiatives could adversely affect our busine§g; the markets in which we operate
highly competitive, rapidly changing and increagyrfgagmented, and we may not be able to compédeéztifely, especially against competit
with greater financial resources or marketplacesgmee; (xi) we face uncertainties associated withrmational markets; (xii) we may
prohibited from promoting and conducting our liweents if we do not comply with applicable regulaso (xiii) because we depend upon
intellectual property rights, our inability to peat those rights, or our infringement of othandellectual property rights, could adversely at
our business; (xiv) we could incur substantialiliibs if litigation is resolved unfavorably; (xwye could incur substantial liability in the ev
of accidents or injuries occurring during our plegdly demanding events; (xvi) our live events exgas to risks relating to large public evt
as well as travel to and from such events; (xvig) aontinue to face risks inherent in our featulra fiusiness; (xviii) we could face a variety
risks if we expand into new or complementary busses and/or make strategic investments; (xix) nisketed to our computer systems
online operations; (xx) through his beneficial owahép of a substantial majority of our Class B coommnstock, our controlling stockhold
Vincent K. McMahon, can exercise control over offiaies, and his interests may conflict with the dwls of our Class A common stock; (xx
substantial number of shares are eligible for bgl#&r. McMahon and members of his family or trusssablished for their benefit, and the ¢
or the perception of possible sales, of those shayald lower our stock price; and (xxii) risksateld to the relatively small public “floatif out
Class A common stock. In addition, our dividendépendent on a number of factors, including, amathgr things, our liquidity and historic
and projected cash flow, strategic plan (includaternative uses of capital), our financial resutsd condition, contractual and le
restrictions on the payment of dividends (includimgder our revolving credit facility), general ecomc and competitive conditions and s
other factors as our Board of Directors may conrsidkevant. The forward-looking statements spedi as of the date of this Form X0anc
undue reliance should not be placed on these statsmAVe undertake no obligation to update or ec&isy forward-looking statements.

" u " ou " ou
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ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure®aut Market Risk

In the normal course of business, we are exposéarémn currency exchange rate, interest rateeaquity price risks that could impact
results of operations. Our foreign currency exclearade risk is minimized by maintaining minimal @ssets and liabilities in currencies o
than our functional currency.

Investment:

Our investment portfolio consists primarily of mcipal bonds, including preefunded municipal bonds and corporate bonds. W
exposed to market risk related to our investmentf@@ primarily as a result of credit quality kind interest rate risk. Credit quality risl
defined as the risk of a credit downgrade to ainviddal fixed maturity security and the potentiak$ attributable to that downgrade. Ci
quality risk is managed through our investment ggliwhich establishes credit quality limitations time overall portfolio as well
diversification and percentage limits on securitiésndividual issuers. The result is a diversifigartfolio of fixed maturity securities, witt
weighted average credit rating of approximately "AA

Interest rate risk is defined as the potentialdoonomic losses on fixed maturity securities dua thange in market interest rates.
investments in municipal bonds and corporate bdrad®e exposure to changes in the level of marketast rates. Interest rate risk is mitig;
by managing our investment portfolsotollar weighted duration. Additionally, we habe ttapability of holding any security to maturiyhich
would allow us to realize full par value. We havaleated the impact of an immediate 100 basis m#iahge in interest rates on our investr
portfolio. A 100 basis point increase in interesties would result in an approximate $0.9 milliorcrdase in fair value, whereas a 100 t
point decrease in interest rates would result iageroximate $0.9 million increase in fair value.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary D

The information required by this item is set faritthe Consolidated Financial Statements filed il report.
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accourtsanon Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedure

Disclosure Controls and Procedur

We have performed an evaluation under the supervishd with the participation of our managemerntluding our Chairman and Ch
Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officef,the effectiveness of our disclosure controls pratedures, as defined under the Secu
Exchange Act of 1934. Based on that evaluation,Ghairman and Chief Executive Officer, and our €Ri@ancial Officer concluded that
of the end of the period covered by this FormKlOsur disclosure controls and procedures werectffe and designed to ensure tha
material information required to be disclosed by @ompany in reports that it files or submits untther Exchange Act is recorded, proces
summarized and reported within the time period<ifipe by the SEC and that such information is awolated and communicated to
management, as appropriate to allow timely decssiegarding required disclosure.

There were no changes in the Company’s internarabover financial reporting identified in conniest with managemers’evaluation thi
occurred during the fourth quarter of our fiscahlyended December 31, 2012 that has materiallgtafie or is reasonably likely to materi
affect, our internal control over financial repodi

Managemer's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Redag

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting, as such term is definet
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 158(f). Under the supervision and with the partitigpa of our management, including our Chairman
Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial o#fr, we conducted an evaluation of the effectigsne
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of our internal control over financial reporting asDecember 31, 2012 based on the guidelines lestat inInternal Control —Integratec
Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafrthe Treadway Commission (COSO). Our internaitaa over financie
reporting includes policies and procedures thatigereasonable assurance regarding the reliabilifinancial reporting and the preparatiol
financial statements for external reporting purgdseaccordance with U.S. generally accepted adoauprinciples.

Based on the results of our evaluation, our managérooncluded that our internal control over finahceporting was effective as
December 31, 2012. We review the results of managémassessment with our Audit Committee.

The effectiveness of our internal control over ficial reporting as of December 31, 2012 has beditealiby Deloitte & Touche LLP,
independent registered public accounting firm, tased in their report which is included in this Arah Report on Form 18- Such repo
expresses an unqualified opinion on the effectigerd the Company’s internal control over financgdorting as of December 31, 2012.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.
Stamford, CT

We have audited the internal control over finanoggdorting of World Wrestling Entertainment, Inaidasubsidiaries (the "Company") a:
December 31, 2012, based on criteria establishebhtarnal Control — Integrated Frameworiksued by the Committee of Sponso
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Camigamanagement is responsible for maintainingcéffe internal control over financ
reporting and for its assessment of the effectissrad internal control over financial reportingelided in the accompanyifganagemeng
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporti.. Our responsibility is to express an opinion oe tbompany's internal control o
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversight iofUnited States). Tho
standards require that we plan and perform thetdadbbtain reasonable assurance about whethectigffeinternal control over financ
reporting was maintained in all material respe€@ar audit included obtaining an understanding ¢érimal control over financial reportir
assessing the risk that a material weakness etésting and evaluating the design and operatifeg@feness of internal control based on
assessed risk, and performing such other procedigase considered necessary in the circumstancesbéhNeve that our audit provide
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial repogtis a process designed by, or under the supemvigi the company's principal execu
and principal financial officers, or persons pemiorg similar functions, and effected by the compsiioard of directors, management,
other personnel to provide reasonable assuranegdieg the reliability of financial reporting antdet preparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generally medeaccounting principles. A company's internaitoa over financial reporting includ
those policies and procedures that (1) pertaihéaraintenance of records that, in reasonablel dataurately and fairly reflect the transacti
and dispositions of the assets of the companypi@jide reasonable assurance that transactione@reded as necessary to permit prepar
of financial statements in accordance with gengi@dcepted accounting principles, and that receiptsexpenditures of the company are t
made only in accordance with authorizations of ngenzent and directors of the company; and (3) peov@&hsonable assurance regar
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized asijon, use, or disposition of the company's asseat could have a material effect on
financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internaltcoihover financial reporting, including the postp of collusion or improper managem:
override of controls, material misstatements duertor or fraud may not be prevented or detected timely basis. Also, projections of ¢
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internaltominover financial reporting to future periods abject to the risk that the controls r
become inadequate because of changes in conditiotisat the degree of compliance with the polideprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mialerespects, effective internal control over fic&l reporting as of December 31, 2(
based on the criteria establishedlrternal Control — Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatmithe
Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight BogUnited States), fl
consolidated financial statements and financiaiestent schedule as of and for the year ended Desmregih 2012 of the Company and
report dated February 28, 2013 expressed an ufigdadipinion on those financial statements andrfoia statement schedule.

/sl Deloitte & Touche LLP

Stamford, Connecticut
February 28, 2013
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Item 9B. Other Information
None.

PART Il

The information required by Part 11l (Items 1@) is incorporated herein by reference to ourrdiiéfie proxy statement for our 2013 Ann
Meeting of Stockholders.

PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedul
(a) The following documents are filed as a parthif report:
1. Consolidated Financial Statements and Sche8eleindex to Consolidated Financial Statementsage -1 of this report.
2. Exhibits:
Exhibit

No. Description of Exhibit

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatincofporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to our Riegtion Statement ¢
3.1 Form S-1 (No. 333-84327)).

Amendment to Amended and Restated Certificate adriporation (incorporated by reference to Exhihit(d) to our
3.1A Registration Statement on Form S-8, filed July2(§)2).

Amended and Restated By-laws (incorporated by eefss to Exhibit 3.4 to our Registration StatemenEorm S-1 (No.
3.2 333-84327)).

Amendment to Amended and RestatedlByvs (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2¢aptr Registration Statement
3.2A Form S-8, filed July 15, 2002).

World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. 2007 Omnibusdntive Plan, effective July 20, 2007 (incorpordtgdeference to
10.1* Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-Kdiléuly 26, 2007).

Form of Agreement for Performance Stock Units m@ompany’s employees and officers under the Cogip@007
10.2* Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by referencéxhibit 10.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-édiJuly 26, 2007).

Form of Agreement for Restricted Stock Units to @@mmpany’s employees and officers under the Conp&t07
10.3* Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by referencéxhibit 10.4 to the Current Report on Form 8-édiJuly 26, 2007).

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement with&fihk. McMahon, effective as of January 1, 201tdmporated by
10.4* reference to Exhibit 10.4 to our Current Reporfonm 8-K filed November 15, 2010).
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Exhibit
No. Description of Exhibit

World Wrestling Entertainment 2012 Employee StodkcRase Plan (incorporated by reference to AppeAdix our Proxy
10.5* Statement dated March 16, 2012)
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10.6* to Exhibit 10.6 to our Annual Report on Form 1044 the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011).

Form of offer letters between the Company and exezwfficers (incorporated by reference to Exhibt7 to our Annug
10.7* Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Dewen31, 2011.

10.8 Revolving Credit Facility dated September 9, 20drid related exhibits and schedules (incorporateckf®rence to Exhib
10.15 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed Sepier 15, 2011).

N

1.1 List of Subsidiaries (filed herewith).

N

3.1 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP (filedr&with).

w

1.1 Certification by Vincent K. McMahon pursid@o Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 200@2d¢fherewith).

31.2 Certification by George A. Barrios pursu@nSection 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 fiherewith).
321 Certification by Vincent K. McMahon and George AarBios pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbadesy Act of 200z

(filed herewith).

101.INS** XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docuatne

101.CAL** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculationrikbase Document

101.DEF** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition mkbase Document

101.LAB** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkba®ocument

101.PRE** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentatigmkbase Document

* Indicates management contract or compensatory @larrangement.

purposes of Sections 11 and 12 of the SecuritieoAt933, are deemed not filed for purposes otiBed8 of the Securities Exchange Ac
1934 and otherwise are not subject to liability emthose sections.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regiisthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theretyp authorized.

W ORLD W RESTLING E NTERTAINMENT, | NC.
(Registrant)
Dated: February 28, 2013 By: /S/VINCENT K. MCMAHON
Vincent K. McMahon

Chairman of the Board of Directors and

Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélptie following persons on behalf
the registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

Signature Title or Capacity Date

Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief
Executive Officer

/s/ VINCENT K. MCMAHON (principal executive officer)
Vincent K. McMahon February 28, 2013
/sl STUART U. GOLDFARB Director February 28, 2013

Stuart U. Goldfarb

/sl PATRICIA A. GOTTESMAN Director February 28, 2013

Patricia A. Gottesman

/s/ DAVID KENIN Director February 28, 2013
David Kenin
/s/ JOSEPH H. PERKINS Director February 28, 2013

Joseph H. Perkins

/sl FRANK A. RIDDICK I Director February 28, 2013
Frank A. Riddick IlI

/sl JEFFREY R. SPEED Director February 28, 2013
Jeffrey R. Speed

/s/ KEVIN DUNN Director February 28, 2013
Kevin Dunn
/s/ BASIL V. DEVITO Jr. Director February 28, 2013

Basil V. DeVito Jr.

/sl GEORGE A. BARRIOS Chief Financial Officer February 28, 2013
George A. Barrios (principal financial and accounting officer)
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.
Stamford, CT

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsheets of World Wrestling Entertainment, Ind aubsidiaries (the "Company")
of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the relatedbtidated statements of income, comprehensive in¢stoekholders' equity, and cash flc
for each of the three years in the period endece®éer 31, 2012. Our audits also included the firzdustatement schedule listed in the Inde
Item 15. These financial statements and finantc&Eement schedule are the responsibility of the @amg's management. Our responsibilit
to express an opinion on the financial statememdsfimancial statement schedule based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighaBlo(United States). Thc
standards require that we plan and perform thet dodibtain reasonable assurance about whethdimidngcial statements are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disas in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princigded and significant estimates made by managenmemtelas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial stateteepresent fairly, in all material respects, thearicial position of World Wrestlir
Entertainment, Inc. and subsidiaries as of DecerBltge2012 and 2011, and the results of their ojmeratand their cash flows for each of
three years in the period ended December 31, 20cdnformity with accounting principles generadlgcepted in the United States of Amel
Also, in our opinion, such financial statement shile, when considered in relation to the basic clidated financial statements taken
whole, present fairly, in all material respect® thformation set forth therein.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Biogwnited States), the Compar
internal control over financial reporting as of Betber 31, 2012, based on the criteria establishéutérnal Control -Integrated Framewoil
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatwinthe Treadway Commission and our report dateorliery 28, 2013 expressed
unqualified opinion on the Company's internal cohdwer financial reporting.

/sl Deloitte & Touche LLP

Stamford, Connecticut
February 28, 2013
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except per share data)

For the years ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010

Selling, general and administrative expenses 136,34: 116,73¢ 109,39:

Operating income 43,19 37,01¢ 82,25¢

Investment income, net 2,19( 2,05¢ 2,041

Other expense, net (997) (1,569 (2,10%)

Net income $ 31,43. $ 24,83. $ 53,45:

Earnings per share:

©

Diluted 04z $ 03 $ 0.71

Weighted average shares outstanding:

Diluted 74,98 74,85¢ 75,30¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgstents.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(in thousands)

For the years ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010

Other comprehensive income (loss):

Unrealized holding gain (net of tax of $450, $1&82d $372, respectively)

Total other comprehensive income




See accompanying notes to consolidated financgstents.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share data)

As of December 31,
2012 2011

CURRENT ASSETS:

Short-term investments, net 86,32¢ 103,27(

Inventory 1,77( 1,65¢

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 15,26¢ 14,46

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET 102,16: 96,56:

TELEVISION PRODUCTION ASSETS 6,331 251

OTHER ASSETS 9,447 8,321

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

&+
I
©+

Current portion of long-term debt 1,262

Deferred income 28,61: 21,70¢

LONG-TERM DEBT — 35¢

NON-CURRENT DEFERRED INCOME — 8,23¢

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:

29,253,665 and 28,254,874 shares issued and aditsfjaas of December 31,

Class B convertible common stock: ($.01 par vafiged00,000 shares authorized;

2012 and 2011, respectively) 45E 462

Accumulated other comprehensive income 4,031 3,26%

Total stockholders’ equity 294,72¢ 295,14:

See accompanying notes to consolidated financédstents.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(in thousands)

Accumulated

Common Stock Additional Other
Class A Class B Paid - in Comprehensive Accumulated
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Income Deficit Total

Net income — — — — — — 53,45. 53,45.

Stock issuances (repurchases),
net 484 5 — — (2,500 — — (2,495

Exercise of stock options 121 1 1,56: 1,56:

Dividends — — — — 1,43¢ — (85,08:) (83,64

Balance, December 31,2010  27,51¢ $ 27t 46,48: % 465 $  336,59. $ 3,14¢ $ (23,729 $ 316,74t

Other comprehensive income — — — — — 11¢ 11¢

Sale of Class B common stock
by shareholder (See Note 14) 31¢ 3 (319) 3) — — — — — —

Dividends — — — — 572 — (48,38:) (47,809

Balance, December 31,2011 28,25 § 282 46,16¢ $ 46z $ 338,41 $ 3,26 $ (47,279 $ 295,14

Other comprehensive income — — — — — 76¢ — 76¢

Sale of Class B common stock
by shareholder (See Note 14) 662 7 (66%) @) —

Dividends 15¢ (35,96¢) (35,815

Balance, December 31, 2012  29,25: $ 29z 4550, $ 458§ 341,76 $ 4,031 $ (51,81 $ 294,72t

See accompanying notes to consolidated financstents.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)



For the years ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010

Net income $ 31,43: $ 2483: $ 53,45:

activities:

Depreciation and amortization 20,02 14,98( 11,70%

Amortization of bond premium 2,27( 2,58( 1,827

Stock-based compensation 3,84t 2,86¢ 7,57¢

Provision for (recovery from) doubtful accounts 2,48: (692) 774

Loss on disposal of property and equipment 63 1,37¢ —

Excess tax benefits from stock-based payment aeraagts 7 (222) (2,75¥)

Accounts receivable 4,56( (1,915 9,90¢

Prepaid expenses and other assets (2,65¢) 4,77(C (14,64

Television production assets (6,080 (25)) —

Deferred income (1,337 (8,267) 12,07«

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from infrastructure improvement incentives — — 4,13(

Proceeds from sales or maturities of investments 45,19: 45,14¢ 64,55

Net cash used in investing activities (12,87¢) (30,719 (40,389

Repayment of long-term debt (1,627 (1,169 (1,087

Issuance of stock, net 811 89z 1,022

Proceeds from exercise of stock options — — 1,562

Net cash used in financing activities (36,619 (49,80¢) (79,389

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD 52,49! 69,82: 149,78«

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Cash paid for interest $ 81t % 41C % 261

Non-cash purchase of property and equipment aret adsets $ 1418 $ 530: $ —

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ#sients.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share data)

1. Basis of Presentation and Business Description

The accompanying consolidated financial statemigrciside the accounts of WWE. “WWHefers to World Wrestling Entertainment, |
and its subsidiaries, unless the context otherwgspiires. References to “we,” “us,” “our” and th€dmpany” refer to WWE and i
subsidiaries. We are an integrated media and aittarent company, principally engaged in the develapt, production and marketing
television, pay-pewiew event programming, live events, feature fildisensing of various WWE themed products and tde sf consumt
products featuring our brands. Our operations egardzed around four principal activities:

Live and Televised Entertainment

« Revenues consist principally of ticket sales t@ lavents, sales of merchandise at these live evetasision rights fees, integra
sponsorships fees, and fees for viewing our payvj@w and video-on-demand programming.

Consumer Products

* Revenues consist principally of direct saleS\ME produced home entertainment (DVD/Bhy), magazine publishing and royal
or license fees related to various WWE themed ptsdsuch as video games, toys and apparel.

Digital Media

* Revenues consist principally of advertising saleor websites, rights fees received for digitaiteat, sale of merchandise on
website through our WWEShop internet storefront salds of various broadband and mobile content.

WWE Studios
* Revenues consist of amounts earned from the disiibb of filmed entertainmen

All intercompany transactions and balances have béminated.
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates— The preparation of financial statements in conféymiith accounting principles generally acceptedhie@ United State
of America requires our management to make estsvatd assumptions that affect the reported amadirstssets and liabilities and disclost
of contingent assets and liabilities at the dattheffinancial statements and the reported amafmsvenue and expenses during the repc
period. Actual results could differ from those psites.

Cash and Cash Equivalents Cash and cash equivalents include cash on depositernight deposit accounts and investments inay
market accounts with original maturities of threenths or less.

Investment Securities, Net We classify all of our investments as availalWedale securities. Such investments consist primani
municipal bonds, including prefunded municipal bonds, and corporate bondsofthese investments are stated at fair value, wittealize:
gains and losses on such securities reflectedyfrtak, as other comprehensive income (loss) inktolders’equity. Realized gains and los
on investments are included in earnings and aiigetkusing the specific identification method fatekmining the cost of securities sold.

Accounts Receivable, Net Accounts receivable relate principally to amouthie to us from pay-peariew providers and television netwo
for pay-perview presentations and television programming, eéepely, and balances due from the sale of hordeosd and magazines. '
estimate the collectability of our receivables asthblish allowances for the amount of accountsivable that we estimate to be uncollect
We base these allowances on our historical cotleatixperience, the length of time our accountsivab&e are outstanding and the finan
condition of individual customers.

Inventory — Inventory consists of merchandise sold on our wepsnerchandise sold at live events and DVDs, wihidh sold via
distributor to retailers. Substantially all of dawentory is comprised of finished goods. Inventmrgtated at the lower of
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share data)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (corued)

cost (first-in, firstout basis) or market. The valuation of our invel®requires management to make market estimasessisg the quantiti
and the prices at which we believe the inventoryloa sold.

Property and Equipment, Ne— Property and equipment are stated at historicat nes of benefits associated with tax incentivess
accumulated depreciation and amortization. Deptieciand amortization is computed on a straigte-basis over the estimated useful live
the assets or, when applicable, the life of thedeahichever is shorter. Vehicles and equipmentapreciated based on estimated useful
varying from three to five years. Buildings andatetl improvements are depreciated based on estimagful lives varying from five to thirty-
nine years. Our corporate aircraft is depreciatg ten years on a straight-line basis less amastid residual value.

Feature Film Production Assets, M Feature film production assets are recorded atdeof production, including production overhead
net of production incentives. The costs for anvittlial film are amortized in the proportion thateeues bear to managemesnd'stimates of ti
ultimate revenue expected to be recognized fronoéation, exhibition or sale. Unamortized featdilen production assets are evaluated
impairment each reporting period. We review andseestimates of ultimate revenue and participatimsts at each reporting period to ref
the most current information available. If estingafer a film's ultimate revenue are revised andidatt a significant decline in a fils’
profitability or if events or circumstances chartbat indicate we should assess whether the fairevaf a film is less than its unamortized 1
costs, we calculate the films estimated fair valaeg a discounted cash flows model. If fair vakuéess than it unamortized cost, the filr
written down. Impairment charges are recorded ags@ease in amortization expense included in obstvenues in the consolidated finan
statements.

Our estimate of ultimate revenues for feature filndudes revenues from all sources for ten yeams fthe date of a filng initial release. W
estimate the ultimate revenues based on industhyCampany specific trends, the historical perforogaaf similar films, the star power of -
lead actors, and the genre of the film. Prior ®® tblease of a feature film and throughout its life revise our estimates of revenues basi
expected future results, actual results and othewk factors affecting the various distribution keis. The most sensitive factor affecting
estimates of ultimate revenue for our feature fiimidrome video sales. Home video sales fluctuageda@n a variety of factors, includ
audience demand for our titles, the volume andityuaf competing home video products, marketing @nomotional strategies, as well
general economic conditions.

Television Production Assets Television production assets consist of severaagfic television series we have produced for distion
either on a potential network or through otherrdistion platforms. Amounts capitalized include dmpment costs, production costs, pos
production costs and related production or gwetiuction overhead. Costs to produce live eveognamming are expensed when the eve
first broadcast. Unamortized television productassets are evaluated for impairment each repopémipd. If conditions indicate a poten
impairment, and the estimated future cash flowsnatesufficient to recover the unamortized asdet,dsset is written down to fair value
addition, if we determine that a program will nigely air, we expense the remaining unamortize@ta$®r the years end&kcember 31, 20:
and 2011 , we did not expense any television pridoluassets.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets We periodically evaluate the carrying amountasfd-lived assets when events and circumstancesmtarr
such a review.

Income Taxe— Deferred tax liabilities and assets are recognfaethe expected future tax consequences of evkathave been reflectec
the consolidated financial statements. Deferreditdoilities and assets are determined based odiffegences between the book and tax t
of particular assets and liabilities and operatosg carry forwards, using tax rates in effecttfa years in which the differences are expect
reverse. A valuation allowance is provided to dffdeferred tax assets if, based upon the availebildence, including consideration of
planning strategies, it is more-likely-than-nottteame or all of the deferred tax assets will reotdalized.

We use a twestep approach to recognizing and measuring unogdaipositions. The first step is to evaluatefasitions taken or expect
to be taken in a tax return by assessing whethey #re more likely than not sustainable, basedlysae their technical merits, up
examination, and including resolution of any refaé@peals or litigation process. The second stép is
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (corued)

measure the associated tax benefit of each posd®the largest amount that we believe is mormdylithan not realizable. Differences betw
the amount of tax benefits taken or expected ttaken in our income tax returns and the amounaxwfbienefits recognized in our finan
statements represent our unrecognized income taafitee which we record as a liability. Our polisyto include interest and penalties rel;
to unrecognized income tax benefits as a comparféntome tax expense.

Revenue Recogniti— Revenues are generally recognized when productshgsped or as services are performed. Howevertalthee natur
of several of our business lines, there are additisteps in the revenue recognition process, sxritted below.

e Pay-perview programming

Revenues from our pay-peiew programming are recorded when the event isdaémd are based upon our initial estimate of tiraber o
buys achieved. This initial estimate is based a@lipinary buy information received from our pay-éew distributors. Final reconciliation
the pay-periew buys generally occurs within one year and anpsequent adjustments to the buys are recognirdatei period ne
information is received.

* Sponsorship

Through our sponsorship packages, we offeeriders a full range of our promotional vehicliegJuding online and print advertising, on-
air announcements and special appearances by qarstars. We allocate revenue to all deliverablestained within a sponsorsl
arrangement based upon their relative selling pricemost instances, we determine relative selfinige used for allocating revenue t
specific deliverable using vendor specific objeetevidence ("VSOE"). VSOE is the selling price thatendor charges when it sells sinr
products or services on a stamdne basis. After allocating revenue to each dedible, we recognize revenue from our sponsc
arrangements when each element is delivered.

e Licensing

Revenues from our licensed products are recogniped receipt of reports from the individual liceesehat detail the royalties generate:
related product sales. If we receive licensing ades, such payments are recorded as deferred eamlare recognized as income v
earned.

» Home videc

Revenues from the sales of home video titles arerded at the later of delivery by our distributoretailers, or the date that these product
made widely available for sale by retailers, neaofallowance for estimated returns. The allowdncestimated returns is based on histo
information and current industry trends.

* Magazine publishiny

Publishing newsstand revenues are recordech e magazine is shipped, net of an allowanceeftimated returns. We estimate
allowance for newsstand returns based upon ouewesf historical return rates and the expectedgoerénce of our current titles in relatior
prior issue return rates.

e TVrights;

Rights fees received from distributors of tlevision programming, both domestically and in&ionally, are recorded when the prog
has been delivered to the distributor and is aklsl&or exhibition. Our typical distribution agreent is between one and five years in le
and frequently provides for contractual increasesr @s term. Expenses incurred in the productibow weekly television programming i
expensed when the programming is first availabtefdibition.

 Films:

Revenue recognition for our feature films gardepending on the method of distribution andetktent of control the Company exerci
over the distribution and related expenses. Wecgsesignificant control over our salfstributed films and as a result, we record disttior
revenue and related expenses on a gross basis fimawncial statements. Third-party distributiorripars
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (corued)

control the distribution and marketing of our lised films, and as a result, we recognize revenue ioet basis after the thigghrty distributo
recoups distribution fees and expenses and rdsalts been reported to us. This typically occurpdriods subsequent to the initial releas
the film. Revenues generated from our films throtigh various distribution channels, including howigeo, video-ordemand and televisis
are recognized consistent with the policies deedrétbove.

Film and Television Production Incentiv— The Company has access to various governmentatgmsgthat are designed to promote film
television production within the United States arettain international jurisdictions. Tax creditsrread with respect to expenditures
qualifying film, television and other productiontizdies, including qualifying capital projects,eamncluded as an offset to the related asset
an offset to production expenses when we have nelk$® assurance regarding the realizable amouhedbx credits.

Advertising Expens— Advertising costs are expensed as incurred, eXoegists related to the development of a majorroencial or medi
campaign which are expensed in the period in whiehcommercial or campaign is first presented. theryears ended December 31, 2012
2011 and 2010, we recorded advertising expens$3,884 , $4,014 and $6,018 , respectively.

Foreign Currency Translatio— For the translation of the financial statement®wf foreign subsidiaries whose functional curres@es nc
U.S. Dollars, assets and liabilities are translatethe yeaend exchange rate, and income statement accountsaaslated at monthly aver:
exchange rates for the year. The resulting trapslatdjustments are recorded in accumulated otbmpeehensive income, a componer
stockholders’equity. Foreign currency transactions are recoitetihe exchange rate prevailing at the transactaie, with any gains/loss
recorded in other income/expense.

Stock-Based Compensatien Equity awards are granted to directors, offiaard employees of the Company.

Stockbased compensation costs associated with ouratestistock units ("RSUs") are determined usingféiremarket value of the Compan
common stock on the date of the grant. These @rstsecognized over the requisite service periodguthe graded vesting method, ne
estimated forfeitures. RSUs typically have a threar service requirement and vest in equal anmgtdliments.

Stockbased compensation costs associated with our peafare stock units ("PSUs") are initially determinesihg the fair market value of 1
Company's common stock on the date the awardsppreved by our Compensation Committee (servicepitioe date). The vesting of the
PSUs are subject to certain performance conditaors a service requirement of three and one halfsy&#ntil such time the performar
conditions are met, stock compensation costs asocwith these PSUs aremeasured each reporting period based upon thentaiket valu
of the Company's common stock and the probabilitattainment on the reporting date. The ultimatenber of PSUs that are issued tc
employee is the result of the actual performancth@fCompany at the end of the performance peodpared to the performance conditic
Stock compensation costs for our PSUs are recogrozer the requisite service period using the giadesting method, net of estima
forfeitures.

We estimate forfeitures, based on historical tremd®n recognizing compensation expense and aiti@ststimate of forfeitures when they
expected to differ or as forfeitures occur.

Earnings Per Share (EP+— Basic EPS is calculated by dividing net income iy weighted average common shares outstandinggdtiné
period. Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing netame by the weighted average common shares odistpduring the period, plus diluti
potential common shares which is calculated ushmgy tteasurystock method. Dilutive potential common shares exeluded from th
computation of EPS in periods in which they haveaati-dilutive effect.

Net income per share of Class A and Class B constamk is computed in accordance with a-class method of earnings allocation. As s
any undistributed earnings for each period arecatkd to each class of common stock based on tpopiionate share of cash dividends
each class is entitled to receive. The Companyndiccompute earnings per share using the two ohetsod for the years end&gcember 3:
2012 , 2011 and 2010as there were no undistributed earnings duriegpttriods. Also, during 2012, the dividends paid gfeare of Class
and Class B common stock were the same.



F-11




WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share data)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (corued)

Recent Accounting Pronounceme

In February 2013, the Financial Accounting StandaBoard ("FASB") issued an accounting standardsatgpdn the reporting of amou
reclassified out of accumulated other comprehersiseme, to improve the transparency of reportifitese reclassifications present the ef
on the line items of net income of significant amizureclassified out of accumulated other comprsiwenincomebut only if the iter
reclassified is required under U.S. GAAP to beassified to net income in its entirety in the sammgorting period. This standard updat
effective for reporting periods beginning after Bexber 15, 2012. We are currently evaluating theaithpf adopting this accounting stand;
update on our consolidated financial statements.

In October 2012, the FASB issued an accountingdstals update to amend the requirements relatech tmpairment assessment
unamortized film costs and clarify when unamortiZédoh costs should be assessed for impairment. ipgate revises the impairm
assessment to remove the rebuttable presumptiorthiaonditions leading to the writdf of unamortized film costs after the balanced
date existed as of the balance sheet date. Thaeuplda eliminates the requirement that an emitpiporate into fair value measurements
in impairment tests the effects of any changesiimates resulting from the consideration of subsatjevidence, if the information would
have been considered by market participants atnssurement date. This standard update is effeftivienpairment assessments perfori
on or after December 15, 2012. We adopted thiswatow standards update for our film impairmenteasment as of December 31, 2
which did not have a material effect on our cortatkd financial statements.

In December 2011, the FASB issued an accountinglatds update that expands the disclosure requitsrfar the offsetting of assets
liabilities related to certain financial instrumerand derivative instruments. The update requiredasures to present both gross informe
and net information for financial instruments angridative instruments that are eligible for net genetation due to a right of offset,
enforceable master netting arrangement or simgegeament. This standard update is effective forfieaal year beginning on January 1, 2(
We are currently evaluating the impact of adopthig accounting standards update on our consotidatancial statements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued an accounting stdngadate to amend the presentation of compreheirsieene in financial statements. 1
FASB also issued an accounting standards upd&edéember 2011 that indefinitely deferred certamaficial statement presentation provis
contained in its original June 2011 guidance. Thelance, which became effective January 1, 20h&sgcompanies the option to pre:
comprehensive income in either a single continidatement or in two separate but consecutive saattsmOn January 1, 2012, we adopte:
effective portions of this accounting standardsaipdy presenting comprehensive income in two s¢@éut consecutive statements.

In May 2011, the FASB issued an accounting standpdate to amend fair value measurements and dedégelosures. This update relates
major convergence project of the FASB and the hatéonal Accounting Standards Board to improve riméonal Financial Reportil
Standards ("IFRS") and U.S. GAAP. This update tesul a consistent definition of fair value and e¢oon requirements for measuremer
and disclosure about fair value between IFRS ar&l GAAP. The update also changes some fair valiesanement principles and enhar
disclosure requirements related to activities ivdle3 of the fair value hierarchy. On January 1120ve adopted this accounting stan
update which did not have a material effect onamnsolidated financial statements.
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3. Earnings Per Share

For purposes of calculating basic and diluitadhings per share, we used the following weiglaieetage common shares outstandini
thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Basic 74,59¢ 74,21: 74,57(
Diluted 74,98: 74,85¢ 75,30¢
Dilutive effect of outstanding options — — 14
Dilutive effect of restricted and performance stockts 37¢ 637 71¢
Dilutive effect of employee share purchase plan 7 9 4
Anti-dilutive outstanding options (excluded fromryghare calculations) 2 72 —

4. Investment Securities and Short-Term Investments

On June 25, 2012, the Company invested $5i0d®ut Industries, Inc. ("Tout") Series B Prefeti®tock. This investment was accounte(
under the cost method. We evaluate our investnnenbut for impairment if factors indicate that grsficant
decrease in value has occurred. No such indicatere noted during the year ended December 31, 200t#s investment is included
Investment Securities in our Consolidated Balaruee® as of December 31, 2012 . In July 2012, tmpany entered into a twgear strateg
partnership whereby WWE would fully integrate amdrpote Tout's technology platform into WWE's TV &doasts, digital properties and |
events. WWE is eligible to receive up to 11,250reba@f Tout common stock
per quarter over the life of the two year agreem@uting the second half of 2012he Company achieved the required performangetaan
recorded revenue of $439 . The Company increasddviestment in Tout for the 11,258ares it received related to the third quarte2Qifz
and has recorded a receivable for the shares @otxpo receive relating to the fourth quarter.

Investment securities and short-term investmentssomed at fair value consisted of the following:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Unrealized Unrealized
Amortized Holding Fair Amortized Holding Fair
Cost Gain Value Cost Gain (Loss) Value
Municipal bonds $ 68,517 $ 482 $ 68,99¢ $ 82,45¢ $ 732 % 83,18¢
Corporate bonds 17,18: 14& 17,321 20,33: (249) 20,08:
Auction rate securities — — — 11,00( (8449) 10,15¢
Total $ 85,69¢ $ 627 $ 86,32t $ 113,78 $ (361) $ 113,42t

We classify the investments listed in the abaldet as available-fagale securities. Such investments consist primafilgnunicipal bond:
including prerefunded municipal bonds, and corporate bonds. & hm®stments are stated at fair value as reqbiyatie applicable accounti
guidance. Unrealized gains and losses on suchisesuare reflected, net of tax, as other comprsivenincome(loss) in the Consolida
Statements of Comprehensive Income.
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4. Investment Securities and Short-Term Investmentécontinued)

Our municipal and corporate bonds are includedhar&erm investments, net on our Consolidated Balai@e$. Realized gains and los
on investments are included in earnings and argatktusing the specific identification method fatekmining the cost of securities sold. A
December 31, 2012 , contractual maturities of thesels are as follows:

Maturities
Municipal bonds 1 month -9 year:
Corporate bonds 3 months 3 years

During the years ended December 31, 2012 , 2012ahd , available-for-sale securities were soldtétal proceeds of $45,191 , $43,3Rt
$64,553 , respectively. Included in these procereei® maturities and calls of available-for-saleusiées of $28,705 , $27,670 , a$89,86.
during the years ended December 31, 2012 , 2012@hd , respectively. The gross realized gainsherd sales totaled $196 , $142 andifi53
2012 , 2011 and 2010respectively. In addition, during 2011 we exexdipreviously granted warrants to purchase comrtaok $n a forme
licensee and subsequently sold this stock for $1,82

As of December 31, 2012 , we had net unrealizedlihgl gains on available-for-sale securities of $6@fich are included in oth
comprehensive income. Of this amount we had grossalized holding gains of $711 and gross unredlizelding losses of $84 As of
December 31, 2011 , we had net unrealized holdiagels on available-for-sale securities of $&@ich are included in other comprehen:
income. Of this amount, we had gross unrealizedihgllosses of $1,158 and gross unrealized holgaigs of $797 .

5. Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is determined based on the exchange that would be received to sell an assetaid to transfer a liability in the principal
most advantageous market for the asset or lialilign orderly transaction between market partitipat the measurement date. Fair valut
marketbased measurement based on assumptions that "rparkietpants” would use to price the asset oilligbAccordingly, the framewor
considers markets or observable inputs as the mpeefesource of value followed by assumptions basmedypothetical transactions, in
absence of market inputs. The fair value shoulddleulated based on assumptions that market gaatits would use in pricing the asse
liability, not on assumptions specific to the gntitn addition, the fair value of assets and lidgie#$ should include consideration of non
performance risk including the Company’s own creidi.

Additionally, the accounting guidance establishethieelevel hierarchy that ranks the quality and religpilof information used i
developing fair value estimates. The hierarchy gitee highest priority to quoted prices in activarkets and the lowest priority
unobservable data. In cases where two or morededfeinputs are used to determine fair value, arfiial instrument's level is determi
based on the lowest level input that is considesigdificant to the fair value measurement in itsirety. The three levels of the fair va
hierarchy are summarized as follows:

Level 1- quoted prices in active markets for titeal assets or liabilities;

Level 2- quoted prices in active markets for similar assets liabilities and inputs that are observabletlfier asset ¢
liability; or

Level 3- unobservable inputs, such as discourdast 8ow models or valuations
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5. Fair Value Measurement (continued)

The following assets are required to be measuréaratalue on a recurring basis and the clasdificawithin the hierarchy was as follows:

Fair Value at December 31, 2012 Fair Value at December 31, 2011
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Municipal bonds $ 68,99¢ $ — $ 68,99 $ — $ 83,18t $ — $ 83,18t $ =
Corporate bonds 17,321 — 17,321 — 20,08: — 20,08: —
Auction rate securities — — — — 10,15¢ — — 10,15¢
Total $ 86,32t $ — $ 86,32t $ — $ 11342¢ $ — $ 103,27 $ 10,15¢

Certain financial instruments are carried at costhee Consolidated Balance Sheets, which approesniair value due to their shdgrm
highly liquid nature. The carrying amounts of casid cash equivalents, accounts receivable and arcpayable approximate fair va
because of the short-term nature of such instrusnent

We have classified our investment in municipal loadd corporate bonds within Level 2 as their u@dnarequires quoted prices for sim
instruments in active markets, quoted prices fentatal or similar instruments in markets that ao¢ active and/or modddased valuatic
techniques for which all significant inputs are eh@ble in the market or can be corroborated bemoable market data. The corporate
municipal bonds are valued based on mattelen valuations whereby market prices from aetstrof industry standard data providers, sec
master files from large financial institutions astfier third-party sources are used as inputs slgorithm.

We have historically classified our investmémtauction rate securities ("ARS") within Level&a3 their valuation required substar
judgment and estimation of factors that are notenily observable in the market due to the lackading in the securities. During the sec
quarter of fiscal 2012, our remaining ARS wereazaby their issuer at par.

The table below includes a roll forward of our istreent securities classified as Level 3 (signiftaamobservable inputs):

As of December 31,

2012 2011
Fair value, Beginning $ 10,15¢ $ 15,03"
Proceeds from redemption of auction rate securities (12,000 (5,000
Realized gain 844 —
Unrealized gain — 11¢
Fair value, Ending $ — 8 10,15¢

The Company also has assets that are required toebsured at fair value on a n@turring basis if it is determined that indicatof
impairment exist. These assets are recorded atdhie only when an impairment is recognized. Dyitime year ended December 31, 201t%
Company recorded impairment charges of $1,229 atuffe film production assets based on fair valuasaements of $1,65During the yee
ended December 31, 2011 , the Company recordedirimgrat charges of $23,41dn feature film production assets based on faiue
measurements of $21,186 . See Noteeature Film Production Assetdsor further discussion. There were no fair vatlueasurements recorc
on a non-recurring basis for the year ended DeceBihe2010. The Company classifies these fair values as L8weithin the fair valu
hierarchy due to significant unobservable inputise Tompany utilizes a discounted cash flows modealetermine the fair value of the
impaired films where indicators of impairment exibhe significant unobservable inputs to this maatel the Compang’expected cash floy
for the film, including projected home video salgsy and free TV sales and international sales, amtiscount rate of 9%hat marke
participants would seek for bearing the risk asgted with such assets. The Company utilizes arper#ent third party specialist who as:
us in gathering the necessary inputs used in ouleino
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6. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

As of December 31,

2012 2011

Land, buildings and improvements $ 97,55. % 83,28«
Equipment 93,31¢ 84,33t
Corporate aircraft 20,85¢ 20,85¢
Vehicles 1,47¢ 1,47¢
213,19¢ 189,95:

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (111,03) (93,389
Total $ 102,16: $ 96,56:

Depreciation expense was $19,151 , $14a520$11,504 , for the years ended December 32, 22211 and 2010respectively. Include
in depreciation expense for the year ended DeceBhe2010 , is a one-time benefit of $1,67dm the recognition of an infrastructure
credit as a result of the Company's transitionigd ldlefinition broadcasting.

7. Feature Film Production Assets

Feature film production assets are summarized|ksvs

As of December 31,

2012 2011
Feature film productions:
In release $ 13,23¢  $ 16,68t¢
Completed but not released 7,84¢ 5,98¢
In production 1,977 —
In development 627 921
Total $ 23,69. % 23,59:

Approximately 38% of “In release” film productiossets are estimated to be amortized over the r@emidhths and approximately 6686
“In release” film production assets are estimatebd amortized over the next three years. We aatieiamortizing 80%f our "In release" filr
production asset within four years as we receivemaes associated with international distributibowr licensed film.

During the year ended December 31, 2012 , we retetsgo feature films under our self-distribution aeg Bending the Ruleand Barricade
which comprise $832 and $825 , respectively, of‘trurelease” feature film assets. We also re-igsmee feature filmNo Holds Barredlirect-
to- DVD under our self-distribution model during the yeaded December 31, 2012Jnder this distribution model, we control thetdisution
and marketing of these films. As a result, we rda@venues and expenses on a gross basis in osolicated financial statements. We
record distribution expenses, including advertisargl other exploitation costs, in our financialteta@ents as incurred. During 2012he
Company entered into an agreement to co-distrith@deature filmThe Day, domestically. This film was released during Auge@12 and th
Company will recognize revenue generated by tiis iin a manner similar to how it recognizes revefareits licensed films; on a net ba
after distribution fees and expenses have beemupecband expenses and results have been repousd to
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7. Feature Film Production Assets (continued)

During the year ended December 31, 2011, Vveased four feature filmghe Reunion, The Chaperone, That's What lafwdinside Out,
which comprise $4,029 of our “In release” featuilen fassets as of December 31, 2012. All of thebasfiwere released under our self
distribution model. Unamortized feature film protian assets are evaluated for impairment each tiegoperiod. We review and rev
estimates of ultimate revenue and participatioriscaseach reporting period to reflect the mostendrinformation available. If estimates fc
film’s ultimate revenue are revised and indicasigaificant decline in a filns profitability or if events or circumstances charigat indicate w
should assess whether the fair value of a filmessIthan its unamortized film costs, we calculat fiims estimated fair value using
discounted cash flows model. If fair value is I&gn amortized cost, the film is written down.

We recorded an impairment charge of $1,229ndutlie year ended December 31, 2012 , relatedrtéeature filmsBending the Ruleanc
Barricade. During the prior year ended December 31, 201% recorded impairment charges of $23,414 relatemlitcseven selflistributec
films and two licensed films. These impairment ¢jearrepresent the excess of the recorded netrguvglue over the estimated fair value.
impairment charge was recorded during 2010.

We currently have four theatrical films designassd'Completed but not releasetlVe also have capitalized certain script developroest:
for various other film projects designated as “Bvelopment”.Capitalized script development costs are evaluateshch reporting period
impairment and to determine if a project is deen@de abandoned. Approximately $1,045 , $728 an@0%8 previously capitalize
development costs were expensed for abandonecctzdje2012 , 2011 and 2010 , respectively.

8. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consistbad @fllowing:

As of December 31,

2012 2011

Trade related $ 7,36 $ 7,85¢
Payroll and related benefits 16,09¢ 6,69¢
Talent related 9,80t 11,87
Accrued event and television production 5,12 4,31¢
Accrued home video royalties 1,98¢ 2,71(
Accrued legal and professional 1,245 1,93
Accrued purchases of property and equipment aner asets 1,41¢ 5,30z
Accrued film liability 572 1,045
Accrued other 5,34t 4,54(

Total $ 48,95 $ 46,28

Accrued other includes accruals for our publishangd licensing business activities, none of whicteexis 5% of current liabilities.
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9. Senior Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility

In September 2011, the Company entered into a isansecured revolving credit facility with a synalied group of banks, with JPMor¢
Chase acting as administrative agent. The credilitfaprovides for a $200,00lne of credit that expires in September 2014, smlextende
Applicable interest rates for the borrowings uniiher revolving credit facility are a LIBORased rate plus 200 basis points or an alternai
rate plus 100 basis points . As of December 3122Ghe LIBOR-based rate plus margin was 2.31#the event the utilization percentag
the facility exceeds 50% , the applicable margimtiie LIBOR-based and alternate base rate borrawivit increase by 25 basis pointés of
December 31, 2012there are no amounts outstanding under the daadiity. The Company is required to pay a comndtrnfee calculated
a rate per annum of 0.375% on the average dailgadportion of the credit facility.

Under the terms of the revolving credit facilithetCompany is subject to certain financial covemamtd restrictions, including limitatic
with respect to our indebtedness, liens, mergetdsagquisitions, dispositions of assets, investmeragital expenditures, and transactions
affiliates. In addition, the revolving credit faityl restricts our ability to pay dividends if a deft or event of default has occurred an
continuing thereunder, or if ouwonsolidated leverage ratio (as calculated underrévolving credit facility) exceeds 2.5:1.0 ordtn
consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio (as caiedlunder the revolving credit facility) does arteed 1.25:1.0.

10. Income Taxes

For 2012 , 2011 and 2010 , we were taxed on owunigcfrom continuing operations at an effective r@e of 26.4% , 32.7% and 34.8%
respectively. Our income tax provision for the yweanded December 31, 2012 , 2011 and 2010 was 5211,%12,049 and $28,488
respectively, and included federal, state and doréaxes.

The components of our tax provision (benefit) exéodlows:

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010

Current:

Federal $ 4,825 $ 16,67 $ 27,27¢

State and local 66 2,18( 2,97t

Foreign 17¢€ (381) 647
Deferred:

Federal 6,15( (5,687%) (1,767)

State and local 34 (737) (599

Foreign (@D} — (55)
Total $ 11,25 % 12,04¢ % 28,48t
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(In thousands, except share data)

10. Income Taxes (continued)
Components of income before income taxes are kvl

Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010
u.s $ 42,397 $ 36,76¢ $ 79,78¢

Income before income taxes $ 42,68: $ 36,88. % 81,94(

The following sets forth the difference betweba provision for income taxes computed at the fk8eral statutory income tax rate 35%
and that reported for financial statement purposes:

Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010

Statutory U.S. federal tax at 35% $ 14,93¢ $ 12,90¢ $ 28,67¢

Foreign rate differential (32 562 (202)

Qualified production activity deduction (979 (1,629 (2,139

Other 34¢€ 14 78C

The tax effects of temporary differences that gise to significant portions of the deferred tasets and deferred tax liabilities consisted o
following:
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10. Income Taxes (continued)

As of December 31,

2012 2011
Deferred tax assets:
Accounts receivable $ 2,302 $ 793
Inventory 4,64( 4,67¢
Prepaid royalties 7,04% 7,48:
Stock options/stock compensation 1,23t 1,42¢
Net operating loss carryforwards 1,61¢ 1,58:
Investments — 14¢€
Intangible assets 2,58¢ 2,65¢
Accrued liabilities and reserves 411 1,16«
Federal benefit related to uncertain taxtjmrs 864 4,02
Deferred tax assets, gross 20,69¢ 23,95:
Valuation allowance (1,616 (1,587
Deferred tax assets, net 19,08: 22,36¢
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property and equipment depreciation (7,825 (3,119
Capitalized feature film production costs (2,899 (4,939
Investments (230 —
Deferred tax liabilities (20,949 (8,057)
Total deferred tax assets, net $ 813 § 14,31

The temporary differences described above repretiffietences between the tax basis of assets bitifias and amounts reported in
consolidated financial statements that will resmiltaxable or deductible amounts in future yeargnvthe reported amounts of the asse
liabilities are recovered or settled. The Compaageived tax deductions from the exercise of stopkions, restricted stock units ¢
performance stock units of $2,747 , $4,908 and®I0in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011 , $14,403 andl®21 respectively, of the deferred tax assets, netcategorized as current assets ir
consolidated balance sheets. As of December 32, 288,269 was included in non-current income iabilities, and as of December 31, 2011
$3,195 was included in other assets in our constaitibalance sheets.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011 , we had valuationvances of $1,616 and $1,58%pectively, to reduce our deferred tax assets
amount more likely than not to be recovered. Thikiation allowance relates to losses incurred @salt of our Australian film entities, a
are not expected to be realized.

We are subject to periodic audits of our vasitax returns by government agencies which caddltin possible tax liabilities. Although -
outcome of these matters cannot currently be détednwe believe the outcome of these audits vatlhmave a material effect on our finan
statements.

U.S. income taxes have not been provided foapproximately $3,268f unremitted earnings of our international sukmsigis. Thes
earnings are expected to be indefinitely reinvestegtseas. It is not practical to compute the esttioh deferred tax liability on these earni
Any additional U.S. taxes payable on the remairfioigign earnings, if remitted, would be substahtialffset by credits for foreign tax
already paid.
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10. Income Taxes (continued)
Unrecognized Tax Benefits

For the year ended December 31, 2012 , we reca)$ige3520f previously unrecognized tax benefits. This priflgarelates to the settleme
of various audits, including the State of Connedtithe IRS, and other state and local jurisdicidmcluded in the amount recognized
$1,520 of potential interest and penalties relatedncertain tax positions. The recognition of thasounts for the year endBeécember 3:
2012 reduced our effective tax rate to 26.4% ferytear ended as compared to 32.7% for the yeaddbdeember 31, 2011 .

At December 31, 2012 , we had $2,1#8inrecognized tax benefits, which if recognizeduld affect our effective tax rate. This entirecam
is classified in Non-current income tax liabilitiest December 31, 2011 , we had $10,733 of unreizegriax benefits. Of this amou$i§,14¢
was classified in Prepaid expense and other cuassgts and the remaining $4,585 was classifidbmcurrent income tax liabilities.

Unrecognized tax benefit activity is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010

Beginning Balance- January 1 $ 10,73: % 10,08: $ 9,07¢
Increase to unrecognized tax benefits recordegdsitions taken during the current yeal 307 1,22¢ 1,80(C
(Decrease) Increase to unrecognized tax benetitsded for positions taken during a prior

period (2,597 47C 584
Decrease in unrecognized tax benefits relatingtibesnents with taxing authorities (5,799 (242) —
Decrease to unrecognized tax benefits resulting fadapse of the applicable statute of

limitations (52¢) (804) (1,379
Ending Balance- December 31 $ 2,12¢ % 10,73¢ § 10,08

We recognize potential accrued interest and pesalélated to uncertain tax positions in incomeetgxense. We have $502accrued intere
and $214 of accrued penalties related to uncetgairpositions as of December 31, 2012 . Essent@llpf this amount is classified in Non-
current income tax liabilities. At December 31, 2Qiwe had approximately $2,654 of accrued intemast $208f accrued penalties relatec
uncertain tax positions. Of this amount, $1,813 wkssified in Prepaid expense and other curres¢tasand the remaining $1,048h<
classified in Non-current income tax liabilities.

Based upon the expiration of statutes of limitagiend possible settlements in several jurisdictiaresbelieve it is reasonably possible tha
total amount of previously unrecognized tax besefialy decrease by approximately $609 within 12 troafter December 31, 2012 .

We file income tax returns in the United States aadous state, local and foreign jurisdictionsring 2012, the IRS completed an examine
for tax year 2009. We are subject to examinatiothieylRS for tax years after 2009. The Company sé¢ftled an outstanding examination \
the State of Connecticut. This examination inclutiedyears through 2010. In addition, the Compaetilesl several audits with other vari
states. In other jurisdictions, with few exceptiong& are subject to income tax examinations byatatkorities for years ending on or a
December 31, 2009.
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11. Film and Television Production Incentives

The Company has access to various governmentafgmsgthat are designed to promote film and telemigiroduction within the Unite
States and certain international jurisdictions elmtves earned with respect to expenditures onifging film, television and other producti
activities, including qualifying capital projectse included as an offset to the related asset anaffset to production expenses when we
reasonable assurance regarding the realizable @rabthe incentives. Film and television productinnentives consisted of the following:

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Feature film production incentives $ 1,851 $ 6,067 $ 4,30:
Television production incentives 7,97¢ 6,565 6,12/
Infrastructure improvement incentives — — 4,13(

12. Commitments and Contingencies

We have certain commitments, including various naneelable operating leases for facilities andssaféices and performance contr:
with various talent.

Future minimum payments as of December 31, 2012muh@é agreements described above were as follows:

Operating
Lease Other
Commitments Commitments Total

2013 $ 2,82¢ $ 11,187 $ 14,01¢

2014 2,751 8,78( 11,53

2015 1,84¢ 2,78¢ 4,63

2016 1,49 1,74% 3,23¢

2017 63¢ 1,51 2,151

Thereafter 97t 5,25¢ 6,23¢
Total $ 10,53 $ 31,27C $ 41,80¢

Rent expense under operating lease commitmentedd$d,608 , $2,847 and $2,263 for years ended iDieee31, 2012 , 2011 and 2010
respectively.

Legal Proceeding:
World Wide Fund for Nature

In April 2000, The World Wide Fund for Nature ansgl American affiliate, The World Wildlife Fund (dettively, the "Fund") instituted lec
proceedings against WWE in the English High Cowking injunctive relief and unspecified damages dileged breaches of a 1¢
agreement between the fund and the Company regaticinuse of the initials "wwf". In the third quartof 2012, this litigation was settle
The settlement did not have a material adversetefie the Company's financial condition, result®pérations or liquidity.

Other Matters

We are involved in several suits and claims thatamsider to be in the ordinary course of our bessn By its nature, the outcome of litiga
is not known but the Company does not currentlyeekfis pending litigation to have a material adeesffect on our financial condition, res
of operations or liquidity. We may from time to #nbecome a party to other legal proceedings.
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13. Related Party Transactions

Vincent K. McMahon, Chairman of the Board of Dirarst and Chief Executive Officer, controls approxietg 83%o0f the voting power «
the issued and outstanding shares of our commaik.stdirough the beneficial ownership of a subsgdntiajority of our Class B comm
stock, Mr. McMahon can effectively exercise contveer our affairs.

From February 2008 until April 2011, the Board afdators authorized quarterly cash dividends oB&@er share on all Class A comn
shares. The quarterly dividend on all Class A aleb€B shares held by members of the McMahon faamity their respective trusts remai
at $0.24per share for a period of three years due to aevaeceived from the McMahon family. This waivepérd after the declaration of 1
March 2011 dividend.

On September 16, 2009, Linda McMahon resigned asf Executive Officer of the Company and announleedcandidacy for the Unit
States Senate, representing the State of Conneckits. McMahon$ election team engaged the Company to producairceklevisiol
advertisements during the campaign in 2012, 201#12810. The Company performed these services amdjeti the campaign the fair mai
value for the provided television production seegicwhich were approximately $4 , $3 , and $f26Qhe years ended December 31, 2012,
and 2010 , respectively.

14. Stockholders’ Equity
Class B Convertible Common Stock

Our Class B common stock is fully convertible i@lass A common stock, on a one for one basis,\atiane at the option of the holder. 1
two classes are entitled to equal per share didislamd distributions and vote together as a clétsseach share of Class B entitled to ten v
and each share of Class A entitled to one votegpixewhen separate class voting is required by egapk law. If, at any time, any share:
Class B common stock are beneficially owned by pergon other than Vincent McMahon, Linda McMahary descendant of either of the
any entity which is wholly owned and is controlleg any combination of such persons or any trustihal beneficiaries of which are ¢
combination of such persons, each of those shaileswtomatically convert into shares of Class Arcoon stock. During the years en
December 31, 2012 , 20khd 2010, Class B shares were sold, resultingein donversion to Class A shares. Through his bhela&bwnershi
of a substantial majority of our Class B commorckt@ur controlling stockholder, Vincent McMahomnceffectively exercise control over
affairs, and his interests could conflict with tin@ders of our Class A common stock.

Dividends
In April 2011, the Board of Directors adjusted tbempany’s quarterly dividend to $0.12 per sharalb@lass A and Class B shares.

From February 2008 through the first quarter of 2ahe Board of Directors authorized quarterly cdisfidends of $0.3f@er share on all Cla
A common shares. The quarterly dividend on all €kasand Class B shares held by members of the Mokl&mily and their respective tru
remained at $0.2fer share for a period of three years due to aevaieceived from the McMahon family. This waivemperd after th
declaration of the March 2011 dividend.

We paid quarterly dividends of $0.12 per sharelireg $35,815 , on all Class A and Class B shasethe year ended December 31, 2012
We paid one quarterly dividend of $0.36 per shame three quarterly dividends of $0.12 per sharalitg $19,957, on all Class A comm(
shares, and we paid one quarterly dividend of $pe24share and three quarterly dividends of $0et2share, totaling $27,852n all Class
common shares for the year ended December 31, 204l paid four quarterly dividends of $0.36 perrsh#otaling $38,724 on all Class ,
common shares and $0.24 per share, totaling $44,81@ll Class B common shares for the year efgEdmber 31, 2010 .
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15. Stock-based Compensation

The 2007 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the "2007 Plarrvigles for equitybased incentive awards as determined by the coraper
committee of the Board of Directors as incentived eewards to encourage officers and employeesticypate in our londgerm success.
2004, we began issuing RSUs, which typically hatkraee year service requirement and vest in equalia installments. In 2007, we be:
issuing PSUs in addition to RSUs, which are suligcertain performance conditions and generalst vatably over three and one-half years.

As of December 31, 2012 , there were approximaefymillion shares available for future grants under the 208m. Bt is our policy to isst
new shares to satisfy option exercises and théngest RSUs and PSUs.

Stock Options

We have not granted any stock options since Jufd 26d there were no stock options exercised deifed during 2012 and there were
stock options exercised, canceled or forfeitedrdu#io11.

The following tables summarizes stock options dgtifor the year ended December 31, 2012 :

Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining
Average Contractual Aggregate
Options Exercise Price  Term (in Years) Intrinsic Value
Outstanding at January 1, 2012 71,96¢ $ 13.4¢ 05 $ —
Canceled/Expired (71,966 $ 13.4¢
Outstanding, vested and exercisable at Decemb&(3Z2, — — $ —

As of December 31, 2012 , there were no unrecodrsieck-based compensation expenses related togptions, as all outstanding stock
options were vested.

The following is information relating to our stooktion activity for the year ended December 31,201

2010
Intrinsic value of options exercised $ 29C
Cash received from options exercised $ 1,562
Tax benefits realized for tax deductions from eiserof stock options $ 11C

Restricted Stock Uni

The Company grants RSUs to officers and eygas under our 2007 Plan. Stdzksed compensation costs associated with ourates
stock units are determined using the fair marké&tevaf the Company's common stock on the dateefjtnt. These costs are recognized
the requisite service period using the graded ngstiethod, net of estimated forfeitures. RSUs @ihichave a three year service requirer
and vest in equal annual installments. We estifmafeitures, based on historical trends, when reéigg compensation expense and adjus
estimate of forfeitures when they are expectedfferd
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15. Stock-based Compensation (continued)

The following tables summarize the activity of RSdisthe year ended December 31, 2012 :

Weighted-
Average Grant-
Units Date Fair Value
Unvested at January 1, 2012 65,18t $ 12.4:2
Granted 147,65. $ 9.2t
Vested (59,539 $ 10.8¢
Forfeited (7,129 $ 11.2%
Unvested at December 31, 2012 146,171 ¢ 9.97

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Stock-based compensation expense $ 1,32 $ 37C $ 73z
Tax benefits realized 494 141 27¢
Weighted-average grant-date fair value of RSUstgrhn 1,36¢ 632 23C
Fair value of RSUs vested 647 1,70( 2,38:

As of December 31, 2012 , total unrecognized stmded compensation expense related to unvested RS0$ estimated forfeitures, v
approximately $702 , before income taxes, andjieeted to be recognized over a weighted-averagedoef approximately 1.3 years.

Performance Stock Uni

Stock-based compensation costs associated withestormance stock units ("PSUs") are initially detmed using the fair market value of
Company's common stock on the date the awardsppreved by our Compensation Committee (servicepitioe date). The vesting of the
PSUs are subject to certain performance conditaors a service requirement of three and one halfsy&#ntil such time the performar
conditions are met, stock compensation costs asocwith these PSUs aremeasured each reporting period based upon thentaiket valu
of the Company's common stock and the probabilitattainment on the reporting date. The ultimatenber of PSUs that are issued tc
employee is the result of the actual performancth@fCompany at the end of the performance peodpared to the performance conditic
Stock compensation costs for our PSUs are recogrozer the requisite service period using the giadesting method, net of estima
forfeitures.
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15. Stock-based Compensation (continued)

The following tables summarize the activity of PSbisthe year ended December 31, 2012 :

Weighted-
Average Grant-
Units Date Fair Value
Unvested at January 1, 2012 813,93( $ 13.31
Granted 622,70 $ 7.8¢
Vested (290,63) $ 15.0¢
Forfeited (460,29) $ 7.27
Unvested at December 31, 2012 685,700 ¢ 8.37

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Stock-based compensation expense $ 2,440 3 2,37¢ % 6,63:
Tax benefits realized 2,25 904 2,52(
Weighted-average grant-date fair value of PSUstgtan 4,91z 6,062 7,18:
Fair value of PSUs vested 4,37¢ 5,87¢ 7,47¢

As of December 31, 2012 , total unrecognized stmaked compensation expense related to unvested R8I estimated forfeitures, v
approximately $ 4,000 , before income taxes, amXected to be recognized over a weighted-averaged of approximately 1.7 years.

Employee Stock Purchase PI

We provide a stock purchase plan for our employdager the plan, all regular full-time employeesyncantribute up to 10%f their bas
compensation (subject to certain income limits)h® semi-annual purchase of shares of our comnumk.sThe purchase price is 8586 the
fair market value at certain plafefined dates. As this plan is defined as compensaa charge is recorded to Selling, general
administrative expense for the difference betwédenfair market value and the discounted price. mu2012, 2011 and 2010, employ
purchased 76,676 , 67,537 and 57,334 shares aooumon stock which resulted in an expense of $83.0 , $194 , respectively.

16. Employee Benefit Plans

We sponsor a 401(k) defined contribution plan cingeisubstantially all employees. Under this plaartipipants are allowed to me
contributions based on a percentage of their satagject to a statutorily prescribed annual litdite make matching contributions of 508
each participant’s contributions, up to @¥eeligible compensation. We may also make additialiscretionary contributions to the 401(k) p
Our expense for matching contributions to the 4pp{n was $1,384 , $1,239 and $1,189 for the yeaded December 31, 2012 , 2Cdri
2010, respectively. The Company did not make asgretionary contributions for the years ended Dewer 31, 2012 , 2011 or 2010 .
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17. Segment Information

As discussed in Note 1, the Company classifiesperations into four reportable segments: Live @iatbvised Entertainment, Consui
Products, Digital Media and WWE Studios.

We measure the performance of our reportable segnb@sed upon segment operating income. We dollocate our corporate overheac
our reportable segments, which includes the mgjarit selling, general and administrative expenses] unallocated depreciation
amortization of property and equipment. Startinghi@ second quarter of 2012, we began allocatingioestaff related expenses, specific
stockbased compensation costs, management incentiveetmaiion and medical benefits in our managemewtrtieg and, as such, we h:
prospectively included these costs in the caloutatif operating income for our reportable segmértiss change did not have a material im
on our reportable segments' operating income. Regfrom transactions between our operating segnagatnot material.

The accounting policies used to determine the pmidace of our operating segments are the samepas tlescribed in Note Summary ¢
Significant Accounting Policies

Operating results by segment were as follows:

2012 2011 2010

Live and Televised Entertainment $ 353,84¢ % 339,97¢ % 331,83¢

Digital Media 34,53 28,13: 28,93"

Total net revenues $ 484,01 % 483,92: $ 477,65!

Depreciation and amortization:

Consumer Products 874 46( 20¢<

WWE Studios 9 9 4

Total depreciation and amortization $ 20,02: $ 14,98C $ 11,70°

Operating income (loss):

Consumer Products 47,76¢ 50,57« 49,99;

WWE Studios (5,469) (29,38¢) (1,767)

Total operating income $ 43,198 $ 37,01¢ $ 82,25t
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17. Segment Information (continued)

The following is a schedule of assets by segment:

As of December 31,
2012 2011

Live and Televised Entertainment $ 150,01: $ 143,59

Digital Media 8,854 6,06:

Unallocated 181,87¢ 162,10t

During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 20h& Company focused on capital spending as dtaslto its efforts to produ
additional content for distribution through variomedia platforms, spending approximately $19,000 $15,000, respectively, towards the
initiatives; these amounts are included in corporand other below. Capital spending, including djpen related to the aforementiot
initiatives by segment, was as follows:

Year ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010

Consumer Products 5,18¢ 1,79: 6C

23,58: 19,26° 4,511

Corporate and other

Geographic Information

Net revenues by major geographic region are baged the geographic location of where our contedistibuted. The information belc
summarizes net revenues to unaffiliated customepgebgraphic area:

Year ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010

Europe/Middle East/Africa 70,72( 76,16: 80,26

Latin America 10,26¢ 18,57: 19,43:

Revenues generated from the United Kingdom, owgekirinternational market, were $34,001 , $33,17® $33,932for the years end:
December 31, 2012 , 2011 and 2010 , respectivegdprédximately $100 and $20ff property and equipment was located outside efithitec
States at December 31, 2012 and 2011 , respectively
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18. Concentration of Credit Risk

We continually monitor our position with, and theedit quality of, the financial institutions thateacounterparties to our financ
instruments. Our accounts receivable relates gatlgi to a limited number of distributors, includirour television, pay-periew and hom
video distributors and licensees that produce amesuproducts containing our intellectual trademaik& closely monitor the status
receivables with these customers and maintain alhoes for anticipated losses as deemed appropfateecember 31, 2012 our larges
single customer balance was approximately 14% ofjoass accounts receivable balance.

19. Quarterly Financial Summaries (unaudited)

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th  Quarter

2012 1) (5) 1) () (1) (2) (3) (4) 1) (4)
Net revenues $ 123,06¢ $ 141,64¢ $ 104,190 $ 115,10¢
Cost of revenues $ 68,397 $ 85,48 $ 61,40¢ $ 69,16¢
Net income $ 15,33. $ 11,94: $ 3521 $ 631
Net income per common share: basic $ 021 $ 0.1€ $ 0.0t $ 0.01
Net income per common share: diluted $ 0.2 $ 0.1¢ $ 0.0t $ 0.01

2011
Net revenues $ 119,900 $ 142,55 $ 108,51t $ 112,94.
Cost of revenues $ 73,247 $ 88,82¢ $ 64,45 $ 88,65
Net income (loss) $ 8,60 $ 14,267 $ 10,59: $ (8,629
Net income (loss) per common share: basic $ 011 $ 0.1¢ $ 014 $ (0.12)
Net income (loss) per common share: diluted $ 0.11 $ 0.1¢ % 014 $ (0.12)

(1) Cost of revenues for the first and fourth geier of 2012 includes impairment charges of $7518v5, respectively, related to cert
of our feature films. For 2011, cost of revenuedudes impairment charges in the first, seconddtand fourth quarters of $2,800
$3,250, $5,123 and $12,241 , respectively, relatddature films. See Note Feature Film Production Assets.

(2) Net income for the second and third quarters of22dtludes the benefit $1,031 and $4,143respectively, relating to incenti
received relating to television production.

(3) For the third quarter of 2011, cost of revena@d net income include the benefit of $4,146 $4399, respectively, relating
incentives received relating to television and offiveductions.

(4) Net income for the third quarter of 2012 reflecteturn to a more normalized level of managemecgntive compensation $2,96:
compared with $(2,683pr the respective 2011 quarter. The third quasfe2011 reflects the reversal of amounts previoaslgrue:
for management incentive compensation as it wasrgd@ted management would not meet performancettarge

(5) Netincome includes $4.1 milliontax benefit in the first quarter of 2012 relategteviously unrecognized tax bene
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20. Subsequent Event

On December 19, 2012, our former video game licei$¢Q Inc. ("THQ") declared bankruptcy. As a restile Company reservékl.7 millior
as bad debt for amounts that were due the Company THQ at December 31, 201Zhe amounts reserved primarily related to spats
agreements and various services WWE provided to irH&pipport of the release WWE '13.

In February 2013, the Company and THQ reached seeagent to terminate its video game license, whigteement was approved by the |
Bankruptcy Court on February 19, 2013. In connectigth this termination, the Company waived itshigyto the pregetition amounts dt
under its license agreement with THQ, and THQ ajtedransfer certain intellectual property rightgl to pay pospetition royalties to WW
by March 31, 2013.

In connection with the THQ license termination, (bempany will recognize approximately $8.0 milliohrevenue during the first quarter
2013 relating to the unrecognized portion of anaae received when the Company entered into thadie agreement with THQ in 2009. /
result of THQ's bankruptcy, the Company will notdige to collect and recognize a portion of antiti#g royalties due in the first quarte
approximately $4.0 million to $5.0 million . Addimally, upon termination of the agreement with THIZ Company entered into a muylgal
agreement with Take-Two Interactive Software, I(itTake-Two") to be the Company's video game licensEakeTwo will assum
distribution of our existing catalog of video games well as develop, publish and distribute nelest effective with the release of
Company's annual franchise game WWE2K14 in late8201
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

SCHEDULE Il — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
(in thousands)

Charges to Balance at
Balance at  Expense/
Beginning Against  Deductions/Adjustments  End of
Description of Year Revenues * Year

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Magazine publishing allowance for newsstand returns 3,28¢ 14,35t (15,49¢) 2,14¢

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Magazine publishing allowance for newsstand returns 4,27 23,62¢ (24,61) 3,28¢

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Magazine publishing allowance for newsstand returns 4,82: 28,93¢ (29,48¢) 4,271

* Includes deductions which are comprised primaoifiyvrite-offs of specific bad debts and returns of magazameshome videos from retaile
or adjustments to the allowance account which t&ffead debt expense.
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Exhibit 21.1

WWE Subsidiaries

(All subsidiaries are wholly-owned, directly or inettly, except where indicated)
TSI Realty Company (a Delaware corporation)
Event Services, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)
- WM Labor MGT, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)
WWE Studios, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)
- WWE Studios Originals, Inc. (a Delaware corpamali

- WWE Films Development, Inc. (a Delaware corpanali
- WWE Studios Production, Inc. (a @&ehre corporation)

- WWE TE Productions, Inc. (a Delaweogporation)
- WWE LH Productions, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)
- Marine Productions Australia Pty Limiteah Australia corporation)
- Barricade Productions Inc. (a BhtiSolumbia corporation)
- Marine 3, LLC (a Louisiana limited lidiby company)
- Marine:Homefront, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)
- Homefront Productions Inc. (a British Columbiarquany)
- Twelve RR, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)
- Reload Films, Inc. (a British Columbia company)
- Six Forty Two Films, Inc. (a Delaware corporadion
- One More Time Films, Inc. (a Delaware corporation
- One Last Job Films Inc. (a British Columbia comga
WWE Properties International, Inc. (a Delaware ooagion)
- XFL, LLC (50 percent owned)
WWE Japan LLC (a Japanese limited liability company
WWE Australia Pty Limited (an Australia limited baity company)
World Wrestling Entertainment (International) Lieit (a UK corporation)

World Wrestling Entertainment Canada, Inc. (a C#aradorporation)



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference ini®egion Statement No. 333-92041, 333-181001 &881151022 on Form S-8 of our reports
dated February 28, 2013, relating to the consdaitifinancial statements and financial statemergduale of World Wrestling Entertainment,
Inc. and subsidiaries, and the effectiveness ofltMafrestling Entertainment, Inc. and subsidiariet®rnal control over financial reporting,
appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Wai/restling Entertainment, Inc. and subsidiar@sthe year ended December 31, 2012.

/sl Deloitte & Touche, LLP
Stamford, CT
February 28, 2013



Exhibit 31.1

Certification required by Securities and Exchangs &f 1934 Rule 13a-14 as adopted pursuant to @e802 of Sarbanedxley Act o
2002:

[, Vincent K. McMahon certify that:

1.

2.

5.

| have reviewed this annual report on FornK16F World Wrestling Entertainment, In

Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtade a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nt#adisg with respect to t
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,ader financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disgte controls and procedures
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiotatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhtsubsidiaries, is ma
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isihg prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr;, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodimand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in atmuoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant'slakisire controls and procedures and presentedsimehort our conclusiol
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contial$ procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetlis report based
such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regidtsainternal control over financial reporting that¢curred during tt
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that hateniadly affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the registran
internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer and | badisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatidntefal control over financi
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thdtaxoimmittee of the registrant's board of direct@nspersons performing the equival
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknes&e the design or operation of internal controkfinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thegistrant's ability to record, process, summasdre report financi
information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesmagement or other employees who have a significalet in the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

Dated: February 28, 2013 By: /s/ VINCEK. MCMAHON

Vincent K. McMahon
Chair of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.

Certification required by Securities and Exchangs &f 1934 Rule 13a-14 as adopted pursuant to @e802 of Sarbanedxley Act o
2002:

I, George A. Barrios certify that:

1.

2.

5.

| have reviewed this annual report on FornK16F World Wrestling Entertainment, In

Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtade a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nt#adisg with respect to t
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,ader financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disgte controls and procedures
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiotatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhtsubsidiaries, is ma
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isihg prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr;, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodimand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in atmuoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant'slakisire controls and procedures and presentedsimehort our conclusiol
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contial$ procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetlis report based
such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regidtsainternal control over financial reporting that¢curred during tt
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that hateniadly affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the registran
internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer and | badisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatidntefal control over financi
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thdtaxoimmittee of the registrant's board of direct@nspersons performing the equival
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknes&e the design or operation of internal controkfinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thegistrant's ability to record, process, summasdre report financi
information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesmagement or other employees who have a significalet in the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

Dated: February 28, 2013 By: /s/ GEORGBARRIOS

George A. Barrios
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1
Certification of Chairman and CEO and CFO Purst@ant

18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant taoBe@d6 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the annual report on Form 10fk\Morld Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. (the “Compényor the year ended December
2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cmsion on the date hereof (the “Repor¥jncent K. McMahon as Chairman of the Ba
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and @eoh. Barrios as Chief Financial Officer of the Quany, each hereby certifies, purst
to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuargéd¢tidd 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, ttwathe best of his or her knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeofA 1934 as amended; ¢

(2) The information contained in the report faiplsesents, in all material aspects, the finan@alition and results of operations of the

Company.
Dated: February 28, 2013 By: /s/ VINCEK. MCMAHON
Vincent K. McMahon
Chair of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer
Dated: February 28, 2013 By: /s/ GEORGBARRIOS

George A. Barrios
Chief Financial Officer



